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Foreword

il

Al

The year under review was fulfilling and yet full of challenges.
The Council has always attached great importance to fair
competition in the marketplace. Since the publication of our first
report on financial services in 1994, the Council has dedicated
its efforts to enhancing public understanding of the subject.
After years of advocating for a cross-sector competition law, we
are very pleased to see that feedback received from the public
consultation concurred with our views and that the Government
would press ahead with drafting the appropriate legislation
for the introduction of a cross-sector competition law and the

establishment of a Competition Commission.

Both economic and cultural linkages between Hong Kong and
Mainland have grown stronger during the past decade. The
Council has also stepped up collaboration with its Mainland
counterparts. Significance of our networking efforts was explicitly
demonstrated in the impact of our research study on PAAG,
a "probable carcinogen” breast augmentation material that
caused many women to suffer the consequence in great agony
emotionally and physically. Following the public release of the
findings in our report, China Consumers’ Association and its
member organisations issued warning against PAAG promptly,
resulting in immediate action in response from the highest levels

of Government of both the Mainland and Hong Kong.

In his 2007-2008 Budget Speech, the Financial Secretary has asked
the Council to provide pre-shopping advice and information and
assistance to Mainland visitors and to review existing consumer
protection legislation in order to boost confidence of visitors
in shopping in Hong Kong. In April, complaints from Mainland
group tourists about malpractices in certain unscrupulous retail
shops had aroused great public concern, promoting the Council

to prioritise to speed up its work on this area.

In response, the Council is putting its efforts on the development
of a dedicated website for Mainland visitors to provide
information on goods and services popular among them.
A special task force will also be formed to handle consumer

complaints lodged by tourists with the aim of help mediating
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complaints swiftly before their departure from Hong Kong. The
Council has also set up a dedicated Working Group to conduct a
review of existing measures to protect consumer rights, including
ways to improve the relevant legislation to curb misleading
and undesirable sales practices, and to study the possibility of
enacting a comprehensive law on fair trade practices. These tasks

will continue to claim a high priority on the Council’s agenda.

CHOICE celebrated its 30th anniversary this year. The celebration
marks a long record of hard work devoted to empowering
consumers through dissemination of independent and impartial
information. CHOICE has come a long way since its debut
appearance in 1976 and has vastly expanded its distribution
network to include internet online, residential fixed-line and

mobile phones.

Prevention and mediation in consumer complaints constitutes a
major part of our work. Our Complaints and Advice Division has
relocated to a new permanent office this year, with a special grant
from the Government. This will enable us to provide better service

to the public.

Finally, | wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to the many
individuals and organisations for their support and guidance to
the work of the Council. | would also like to thank my colleagues
in the Council for their hard work and dedication, especially to
Mrs. Pamela CHAN who retired this year.

Zc

K. C. CHAN
Chairman, Consumer Council
June 2007
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Membership of the Consumer Council
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The Consumer Council

HEEBZ

The Consumer Council is a statutory body established in 1974.
Pursuant to the Consumer Council Ordinance (Cap 216), the
Council's functions are to protect and promote the interests of
consumers of goods and services and purchasers, mortgagors

and lessees of immovable property by:

a. collecting, receiving and disseminating information

concerning goods and services and immovable property;

b. receiving and examining complaints by giving advice to
consumers of goods and services and purchasers, mortgagors

and lessees of immovable property;

c. taking such action as it thinks justified by information in its
possession, including tendering advice to the Government or

to any public officer;

d. encouraging business and professional associations to
establish codes of practice to regulate the activities of their

members; and

e. undertaking such other functions as the Council may adopt

with the prior approval of the Chief Executive in Council.

Membership of the Council

The Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Members are all appointed
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR for a term of service not
exceeding two years. They may be reappointed upon expiry of

their respective terms of office.

During the year, Prof. CHING Pak-chung, Mr. Frank LEE King-ting,
Mr. Brian LI Tze-leung, Dr. LO Chi-keung and Mr. Charles Peter MOK
retired from the Council. Five new Members joined the Council.
They were Mr. William CHAN Che-kwong, Dr. Polly CHEUNG Suk-
yee, Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen, Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon and
Mr. Michael LI Hon-shing. To the retirees, the Council wishes
to express its heartfelt thanks for their support, dedication and

contributions. A list of the Council Members is at Appendix 1.
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Council and Committees

The Council meets bi-monthly. Committees and working groups
are set up to examine specific areas of consumer concern. The
Council invites from time to time appropriate professionals of
relevant disciplines as co-opted members in order to benefit from
their expertise. In the year under review, a new Working Group on
Improvement of Consumer Protection Law was set up to identify
areas for improvement in Hong Kong's consumer protection laws.
A list of Committees/Working Groups and their members is at

Appendix 3.

The Council Office

The Council Office, headed by the Chief Executive, has an
establishment of 124 staff with about one-sixth (or 16%) operating
from the Council's Consumer Advice Centres in various districts
of the territory and the Consumer Council Resource Centre in

Tsimshatsui.

The Council Office operates with six functional divisions, namely
the Administration & External Affairs Division, Complaints and
Advice Division, Consumer Education Division, Legal Affairs
Division, Public Affairs Division, Research and Trade Practices
Division. The organisation chart of the Council Office is at

Appendix 4.

Mrs. Pamela CHAN WONG Shui, having served with the Council as
Chief Executive for over 21 years, retired from the Council on 31
March 2007. Mrs. CHAN's accomplished career included tenure as
the President of Consumers International and the establishment
of close liaison with consumer bodies in the Mainland. Ms. Connie
LAU Yin-hing, incumbent Deputy Chief Executive, would succeed
Mrs. CHAN as the new Chief Executive from April 1 2007. Serving
with the Council for over 30 years, Ms. LAU has rich and varied
experience in the consumer field and is widely recognised for
her public credibility in the advocacy of consumer interests.
The Council wishes to welcome Ms. LAU and to express deep
gratitude to Mrs. CHAN for her invaluable and distinguished

service in the field of consumer protection and empowerment.

During the year, CC Club, with all members elected among staff,
was formed. CC Club helps inter-communication among staff and
organisation of recreational activities with a view to increase staff

involvement and sense of belonging.
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BB

Co-opted Members of the Consumer Council EBE&EZE SILRES

From left to right
HEER

Ms. Wendy W.Y. YUNG A EB#E12ET

Prof. Japhet Sebastian LAW FEX8E5%

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, BBS, JP R EDSCH » SEHIZEE » XML
Ms. Marina WONG Yu-pok, JP EHIE& 6T » X Ft

Ms. Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, JP Fiihiss K760 » X Ffht

Mr. Addy LEE ZFi85C4

Mr. Daniel C. LAM, BBS, JP #hi&5c 4 » SREFIES - Kt
Mrs. Sandra MAK Z2&/\i2 &+

Dr. Corinna SIU Miu-chee B & i#E+

Mrs. Grace CHOW FEIfsc ¥4+

Dr. Matthew NG R E KB4

Ms. Clara SHEK AEEL T

Dr. Thomas CHENG ERz2s21E+

From left to right
HEER

Principal Complaints & Advice Officer, Mr. CHAN Wing-kai $%5f R A HEN B 1  BRK{ERAE

Senior Legal Counsel *, Ms. Wendy CHAN jAZE #5508 1T © fRE4 =+

Principal Public Affairs Officer, Mr. Kenneth SO AXEFEENEE E1E - BREEXE

Chief Executive, Mrs. CHAN WONG Shui, Pamela #8845 - fEEi@%+

Deputy Chief Executive, Ms. Connie LAU B8535 + B34+

Principal Research & Trade Practices Officer, Ms. Rosa WONG M7 R & F BB EE 1 - H@BLt
Head, Administration & External Affairs Division, Ms. Vennie LAl {TEU R4V E S48 1T » 2eala&+

Head, Consumer Education Division, Mr. WONG Koon-shing SHBE#BHMEF  TRMLE

*Senior Legal Counsel AREHLFEEEF
Ms Wendy CHAN (up to 12.12.06) fR&iZ+ (£ 12.12.06 )
Mr. Simon CHUI (from 13.12.06) #3E =554 (B 13.12.06) Ms. Eva Sze (from 1.2.07) 8 X &+ (F 1.2.07)



The Consumer Council is an equal opportunities employer who
operates with due emphasis on sustainable development issues
in support of environmental protection. In 2006/07, the number
of disabled employees represented 2.4% of the Council Office's

permanent establishment.

Finance
The Council derives its income mainly from government
subvention. Other sources of income (about 6%) include proceeds

from the sale of the Council’s publications.

Total recurrent and non-recurrent expenditures for 2006/2007
were about $66.31TM and $0.85M respectively. The Auditors’
Report and financial statements for the Council's accounts are at

Appendix 5.

In the year under review, a special grant of $9.8M was received
from the Government for the purchase of a permanent office to

house the Complaints and Advice Division.
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Forestalling & Mediating Disputes
between Consumers and Businesses

TRFL K SR B H & B S & FE p i

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

Consumer satisfaction is important to the marketplace. The
Council offers a convenient service to consumers in making
enquiries and lodging complaints so as to provide pre-shopping
advice and help mediate disputes as they occur. Besides visiting
our eight Consumer Advice Centres (CACs), consumers can also
make complaints or enquiries by calling our hotline (Tel no: 2929
2222), through our website, by post or fax. Appendix 7 sets out
the locations of the CACs.

Functions of Consumer Advice Centres
collecting, receiving and disseminating information
concerning goods and services;
tendering advice on goods and services;
receiving consumer complaints;
keep an eye on trade practices within the district; and

acting as local representatives of the Council.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

Serving Consumers

CACs & Hotline Centre received:

- 175,386 consumer enquiries (86.2 % by telephone).
- 23,113 complaints (64.6% of total complaints)

- 10,857 consumer information pamphlets distributed

Enquiry service and hotline were most busy when there were
certain consumer ‘crises’issues, ie., reports of unsafe products and

big problems with certain traders in the market.
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Mediating Consumer Complaints
The Council staff mediates the consumer disputes to help resolve

complaints with pursuable grounds

Complaints received :
All : 35,752, second highest number ever recorded and 5.1% less
than the record high of 37,689 of last year (2005/2006).

Tourists : 2,130, 8.8% over 2005/06 (1,957). Mainland tourists
1,494, 12.4% over previous year (1,329 ), mostly involved shopping

arranged by tour guides.

Telecommunications services continued to top the list of
consumer complaints with a total of 11,333 cases, although
10.8% less than the proceeding year. They were mainly related
to (a) delays in installation for broadband service, accounting
errors and access speed, (b) mobile phones charges, (c) quality of
mobile phone handsets, (d) problems of switching between fixed

line suppliers, and (e) unsatisfactory customer services.

Apart from mediatinghelping to resolve such complaints, Council
staff drew attention of the regulator (OFTA) and worked closely

with it with a view to curbing trade malpractices.

Generally speaking, complaints received in recent years had
become increasingly complicated, many of which involved
contract terms, e.g., Sales & Purchase Agreement for property
transactions. This and the large case volume had exerted

inordinate pressure on Council staff.
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Outcome:
The Council helped resolved 92.7% of cases with pursuable

grounds.

Nature of complaint Cases:

(@) Cases with pursuable grounds 27,810
(b)  Cases where the complaint turned out

to be unsubstantiated or unjustified 643
(c) Cases of a general nature where advice was given 6,716
(d) Caseswhere the trader ceased business while

the complaint was being processed 583

Total number of complaints: 35,752

Results of mediation efforts in the pursuable cases (27,810 )--

(@) cases resolved

- redress obtained/complaints satisfactorily

resolved 82.5%

- satisfactory and acceptable explanations
provided by traders concerned 10.2%
(b) traders refused to co-operate 7.3%
Total: 100%

If traders refused to co-operate in resolving justifiable complaint
cases, consumers may seek redress at the Small Claims Tribunal

and the Council will tender advice appropriate.

Relocation of the Complaints & Advice
Division

A new permanent home was found to house the staff of the
Complaints & Advice Division at Kodak House Il in North Point,
Hong Kong in order to better serve consumers seeking advice or

lodging complaints. The relocation was effected in October 2006.

Co-operation with Hong Kong Police

To curb complaints against traders at Chung Ying Street (a
restricted district at the border), Council staff collaborated with
the Hong Kong Police in launching campaigns against trade
malpracties. Measures included public broadcasting of consumer
advice, distributing of pampbhlets to alert visitors and meeting
with traders before the festive seasons such as the National Day,

the Labour Day and the Re-unification Day.

To forestall problems, Council staff regularly exchanged
information with various divisions of the Police force on modeling

fraud, job-seeking traps and time sharing schemes etc.
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In 2006/2007, we had stepped up co-operation with Shenzhen

Consumer Association through: (1) distribution of consumer

training seminars for their staff and exchange of consumer

protection information.
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Advocating Best Practice and Competition

(EE

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

In a market-based economy such as Hong Kong, the Council has a
role to play in ensuring that best practice and competition in the
marketplace bring desired effects of consumer satisfaction and
economic efficiency, thereby benefiting consumer welfare — with
lower prices, more choices and higher quality of products and

services.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

The Council undertakes research and study on various aspects
of marketplace behaviour to identify matters of concern to
consumers as well as to encourage responsible trade practices
and fair competition. The following major work was performed

during the year under review.

Branch Closure and Fee Increases of Banks

In recent years there had been a substantial reduction in the
number of manned bank branches and rise in bank fees in
Hong Kong. The Council conducted a detailed study to gauge
the impact of branch closures and fee increases of banks on
disadvantaged consumers at a district level. Focus groups and
field visits were conducted in three districts and respondents

shared their experience and expectation of banking services.

The study found that for many respondents, a bank branch
remained the basic means through which they were comfortably
able to manage their money. Access to bank branch was a critical
need to them. A majority of the respondents believed that banks,
as corporate citizens, should act upon their social obligations
and have regard to the needs of the community. They found
branch closure disappointing, and their concern centred around

affordability, access, service quality and convenience.

The Council proposed a list of recommendations addressed
to various stakeholders which might improve access to bank
branches, reduce barriers to switching banks, facilitate the use of
automatic teller machines (ATMs) and other automatic banking
facilities, ensure fair and reasonable bank charges, and increase

the transparency of fee waiver policies. The Council also advised
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consumers to properly choose and use banking services to cater

for their own circumstances.

The Council had discussions with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority and the Hong Kong Association of Banks (HKAB) over
the findings and recommendations of the study. The HKAB had
undertaken special educational activities to promote the use of
ATMs and proposed a number of measures in an effort to address

the issues identified in the study.

Annual Benefit Statements of Mandatory
Provident Funds

The Council provided comments to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority (MPFA) regarding MPFA's proposals to
improve the content of annual benefit statements (ABS) provided
to members of mandatory provident fund (MPF) schemes. The
Council was pleased to note that in developing the proposals
about contributions, transactions, fees, charges and performance
of the accounts of scheme members, the MPFA had taken into
consideration the Council’s findings and recommendations made

in a previous MPF study.

On the whole, the Council supported the MPFA’s proposed
content requirements for ABS as they would greatly enhance
scheme members' understanding of their MPF investment and in
turn enable them to effectively exercise their right and better plan

their retirement.

However, on the proposal that trustees be given an option to
provide some of the new information by means other than the
ABS (such as by electronic or web-based means), the Council was
concerned whether this approach could ensure that all scheme
members would have adequate access to the new information
available to them. The Council was of the view that if such
information was to be made available by electronic means or
upon scheme members' request, scheme members might not
take the initiative to access the information. Therefore, to avoid
diminishing the importance of the new information and to secure
the most benefit to scheme members, the Council suggested that
the new information should be included in the ABS provided to

all scheme members.

As some scheme members might not want to receive very detailed
information, the Council recommended that after all scheme
members had been given a long version of the ABS for the first
time, they should be asked to indicate if they wanted to continue

to receive the full version or an abridged version of the ABS.
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Future Development of the Electricity
Market

In responding to the second stage consultation reviewing the
Scheme of Control (SOC) agreements, the Council pointed out
that:
Maintaining a high standard of reliability of electricity supply
into the future should not incur costs significantly above the
levels currently paid by consumers, rather consumers would
expect that the prices they pay for such a critical service
should be substantially reduced;
The Council supported the continued use of the SOC as a
transitional measure which could provide a clear roadmap
on what was expected of the industry as it moved towards
market liberalization;
The Council welcome the proposal review of the permitted
rate of return every five years to ascertain the need for
adjustment;
The new SOC should be drafted so as to place legal
obligations on two power companies to implement an
interconnected power system;
The Council supported having a designated agency to
oversee Hong Kong's future energy needs and coordinate the
economic and environmental regulatory activities;
The Government should require as a condition of the new
SOC that the power companies disclose appropriate financial

and performance data.

Universal Service Arrangements in
Telecommunication Sectors

The Council welcomed the Government's proactive step
in reviewing the scope, funding mechanism and a number
of specific concerns regarding the universal services
arrangements to take account of the rapid development of the
telecommunications services market in Hong Kong.
The Council agreed that the universal service arrangements
should be maintained that affordable basic telephone services
would continue to be available to all people in all areas of
Hong Kong.
Voice services and broadband Internet access services should
form utility services available to everyone in Hong Kong;
Provision of helplines in Country Park trails for making
emergency calls free of charge should be continued;
Competitive provision should be introduced to the universal
service arrangements so that the universal services would
be provided by operators for different areas in the most cost-

effective manner.
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Universal service contribution sharing could be based on

numbers allocated to all fixed and mobile services operators.

Beauty Industry Code of Practice

The Beauty Industry Code of Practice (the Code) was released in
June 2006. It was the first major voluntary code of trade practice
in the Council's drive for corporate social responsibility since the

launch of a Good Corporate Citizen's Guide in March 2005.

The Code was made possible in a project of collaboration
between the beauty industry and the Council. For effective
implementation of the Code, trade and professional bodies
representing a wide cross section of the industry had formed a

Joint Consultation Group to chart and oversee its progress.

The Code sets the guidelines for best business practice in four
key areas: the quality of service and products, promotion and
sale tactics, the prepayment mode of operation, and the setting
up of a consumer complaint handling mechanism and service

performance pledge.

The Code would also be adopted by the beauty industry in

Macau.

Working with the Government on
Competition Issues

The Council's Chairman and Chief Executive are respectively
members of the Government’s Competition Policy Review
Committee and the Competition Policy Advisory Group
(COMPAG).

During the year under review, the Council briefed COMPAG
Members generally on its views, in addition to investigating
matters which the Council considered should be brought to
COMPAG's attention.

In fulfilling its statutory role of tendering advice to the
Government, the Council organised a forum for small and medium
enterprises in January 2007 to solicit their views and concerns
about the Government'’s public consultation on the way forward
for Hong Kong's competition policy. Over 130 participants from
different industries and trade associations attended the forum.
The views collected were summarised for consideration by the

Government.
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Way Forward for Competition Policy

Having advocating for over 10 years for a basic set of rules, in
the form of cross sector general competition laws, to protect
the integrity of the free market system, the Council was pleased
to see significant support in the community for a cross-sector
competition law in response to the Government’s consultation on

Hong Kong's competition policy in 2006.

The Council viewed that the future legislative proposal should
have the following features:
apply basic competition law principles be against anti-
competitive conducts and abuse of dominant market
position;
have procedures for exempting parties, private entities or
government agencies in circumstances which public benefit
outweighs the detriment to competition;
establish a competition authority which is autonomous
with sufficient power for investigating allegations of
anticompetitive conduct;
limit the right to private action;
have stringent confidentiality provisions preserving
confidentiality of information;
use of a leniency program to encourage disclosure of the
existence and activities of cartels;
provide for civil infringement and set monetary penalties at a
level that acts as a deterrent; and
implement a continual process of review in new policy

formulation and in reviewing current policies.

Responses to Consultation Papers

In addition to the above, the Council also commented on
consultation papers released by the Government and others
bodies on matters affecting the interests of consumers. A list of

the submissions can be found at Appendix 6.
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Ensuring Product Quality and Safety
ERERERKZE

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

The Council conducts tests on consumer products to provide
unbiased comparative test results for consumers to make
rational choices, to alert them to product hazards and to
induce improvements in product quality and safety. Major test
items include safety, performance, ease of use, durability and

environmental sustainability for most products.

Media coverage of testing results reach not only consumers in
Hong Kong, but the neighbouring regions in the Mainland, as well
as overseas Chinese who have access to Hong Kong's broadcast

and printed news.

That is why the Council’s product testing reports are well sought
after by consumers while at times received with mixed feelings by
traders, depending on the ratings of their products in comparison
with those of their competitors. This has in turn become an

impetus for traders to improve their product and service quality.

HOW THIS IS DONE

There are three different types of tests, firstly, those which
are initiated and solely conducted with the Council’s own
resources. Most of these tests are conducted by accredited and
independent laboratories in Hong Kong. In case local testing
facilities do not meet the Council’s requirements, appropriate
overseas laboratories will be commissioned. Secondly, joint tests
conducted by International Consumer Research and Testing (ICRT),
an association of 41 consumer organisations from 37 countries
worldwide. As an active member, the Council has benefited from
ICRT's joint tests through which utilisation of resources can be
maximised and experience shared. Otherwise, the Council could
not have provided Hong Kong consumers with test findings of
such as mobile phones, digital cameras and MP3 players at such
frequency. Thirdly, co-operation with selected overseas consumers
associations. It should be noted that all test samples were sourced

from reliable outlets in the market.
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WHAT WE HAVE DONE

In the year under review, 43 product testing reports were
published in CHOICE. Findings in a number of tests indicated
that most products complied with government regulations,
e.g. Electrical Products (Safety) Regulation, Food Adulteration
(Metallic contamination) Regulations and Consumer Goods
Safety Ordinance. Based on the findings, the Council also made
proposals to the manufacturers, agents, and government
regulatory bodies on areas for improvements. A list of the tests

conducted is at Appendix 8.

HIGHLIGHTS OF TESTS

Electrical Products

Electric Blankets

The Council tested 11 electric under-blankets with reference to
international safety standard. 9 models for single-person were
bought locally and 2 were purchased in Shenzhen. The majority
of samples were satisfactory and the magnetic radiations from the
blankets were found to be much lower than the limit imposed
by the International Commission on Non-lonizing Radiation
Protection (ICNIRP). However, one local and 2 Shenzhen samples
were found to have non-compliance in various aspects: failure
in respect of the tensile test of internal heating wires under
abnormal condition, insufficient resistance of insulating materials
to heat or flame, and overheating in temperature tests. The test
results were sent to the Council’s counterpart in Shenzhen for

follow-up.

Computer Power Supplies

The Council tested the safety and loading performance of 14 ATX
and 6 notebook computer power supplies. Only 6 of the 14 ATX
supplies were able to provide the full loading as claimed on the
rating label. With reference to international safety standard, some
ATX samples were found to have deficiencies in the temperature,
construction and material flammability assessments. For the 6
notebook supply samples, 4 branded ones were found to pass all
safety requirements of the standard, and could supply the loading
claimed. The other 2 notebook samples of the universal type,
which could be used with major branded notebooks, yielded
temperatures higher than the limits. The plastic enclosures of
these 2 samples were also found deforming seriously in the high
temperature test. Moreover, the output power delivered was not

as high as claimed in some voltage settings.
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Induction Hotplate

The built-in type induction hotplates became more and more
popular over the last year and some negative comments were
published in newspapers. In view of the public concern, the
Council conducted a test, in collaboration with the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department (EMSD), to investigate the media
reports on their safety and performance. One of the common
safety concerns related to induction cooking is the harmful
magnetic radiation that these appliances may pose to users.
The magnetic flux radiation of all models tested was measured
to be lower than the limits in the ICNIRP guideline. Moreover, it
was found that users wearing metal accessories such as watches,
bracelets and rings at the normal operating positions were not

affected by magnetic radiation, if any.

Regarding the construction, the test found that one model failed
to switch off both automatically and manually by the user when
boiling water spilled over, and cracks were found on the top
ceramic plate of another model during impact test. Some special
operation tests were performed to simulate potential abusive
use with cans of food, forks, spoons and metal accessories.
It was found that all samples could detect the absence of a
suitable utensil for cooking when only forks and spoons, or metal
accessories were placed on the top of or near the hotplates.
However, only 4 models were able to distinguish 3 cans of food
from a suitable utensil and stopped operation. The other models

would heat up the cans in high or low power settings.

Food

Bottled Green Tea Drinks

The Council tested 30 samples of bottled green tea drinks
available in Hong Kong. The test discovered that, though tea
polyphenols in all the samples were in compliance with the
requirement of the Mainland's industrial standard QB 2499-2000,
the tea polyphenols in bottled drinks were likely to be less than

what consumers could get by brewing their own tea.

The amount of sugar found was generally consistent with the
claimed sugar content on their label. In the case of the 500
ml sample with the highest sugar content, its calorie content
could exceed even that of a can (355 ml) of coke. Consumers are
advised to watch out for the intake of sugar while drinking bottled
tea drink. It was also found that samples bearing such claims as
"sugar-free’, "no sugar’, "low sugar" and "little sweet" might not
necessarily contain less sugars than the samples without any
claim on their sugar content. One of the sample labelled "low

sugar" was found to have failed to specify the amount of sugar it
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contained. The case was referred to the Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department (FEHD) for follow-up action under the
labelling requirement of the Food and Drugs (Composition and

Labelling) Regulations.

Acrylamide in Fried and Baked Snacks

In a joint test between the Council and the Centre for Food
Safety under FEHD, a total of 113 samples over a diverse range
of fried and baked snacks (103) and beverages with roasted
raw ingredients (10) were tested for the level of acrylamide, a
contaminant generated in the process of cooking, particularly
when carbohydrate rich foods were cooked (baked or fried) at
temperatures above approximately 120°C. The International
Agency on Research of Cancer (IARC) evaluated acrylamide as
“probably carcinogenic to humans” (Group 2A). The Joint FAO/
WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives (JECFA) recommends
keeping the exposure to acrylamide as low as reasonably

achievable.

With few exceptions, all the test samples — chips and crisps,
biscuits and biscuit-type snacks, breakfast cereals, nuts, Asian
deep fried snacks, coffee and cocoa drinks — were found to
contain varying levels of acrylamide. Overall, foods that were rich
in carbohydrate, crispy and thin tend to contain a higher level of

acrylamide, e.g. potato crisps, French fries and biscuits.

In Hong Kong, there is no specific regulation governing the
acrylamide level in food. The food industry was urged to
avoid frying, roasting or baking foods especially those rich in
carbohydrate at too high a temperature and for too long a time.
For household cooking, consumers could try to use a thin layer
of starch batter to fry tuber foods to reduce the formation of
acrylamide. In general, it was advised to take a balanced and
varied diet, with more fruit and vegetable, and moderate the
consumption of fried and fatty foods to minimize the intake of

acrylamide.

Household Products

Food Wraps

The Council conducted a test on 16 models of food wrap
obtained from the market, 6 of which were claimed to be
microwavable. Among the microwavable food wraps, 2 models
of polyethylene (PE) were found to melt and deform after 10
minutes of cooking in a microwave oven. This may pose a risk of
food contamination if food were in direct contact with the plastic

wrap.
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However, when the wraps were tested in accordance with the
Japanese Industrial Standard (JIS Z1707:1997), all models were
found to be in compliance sustaining heat of 100°C or the claimed

maximum sustainable temperature (up to 110°C and 140°C).

In addition to heat resistance, the food wraps were subjected to
different tests for different leachable contaminants. All were found

to be complying with the respective EU Council Directives.

The Council advised consumers that plastic food wraps were safe
for use but microwavable food wraps were not recommended
for prolonged use in high temperature in microwave oven, and

consumers should always ensure food is cooled down before

wrapping.

Retractable Dog Leashes
The Council published results of a test conducted by the
Australian Consumers’ Association and alerted consumers about

the potential hazard of unsafe retractable dog leashes.

12 models of retractable dog leashes were examined of which
2 were found unable to withstand a maximum pull force of 500
Newton which was applied to simulate the pulling force of a 20

kg dog jumping forward all of sudden.

Although the 2 models which failed the test could not be found
for sale in the local market, consumers were alerted about the test
results and advised not to choose and use retractable dog leash

without appropriate labelling.

Personal Care

Lipsticks

To assess the safety of lipsticks, the Council tested 40 samples, 30
from Hong Kong and 10 from Macau. Seven samples were found
with lead and one with cadmium. The concentrations found were
in compliance with the limits stipulated in China or the cosmetic
regulations of Japan and Taiwan. Three samples were detected
with antimony, concentration ranging from 2.3 ppm to 7.8 ppm.
The presence of traces of antimony is allowed under European
Union Standard, provided that the heavy metal is technically
unavoidable in good manufacturing process, and that the product
concerned must not cause damage to health under normal use.
Contact with the metal nickel can commonly cause allergy. 26
models were found to contain the nickel in concentration from
1.1 ppm to 16 ppm. The reference limit of nickel in cosmetics

is 10 ppm. All samples were found not to contain mercury and
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arsenic or ten prohibited colour additives with reference to the
EU Cosmetics Directive. The results of microbial contents were

satisfactory.

Inspection of the labels revealed that 7 samples were not labelled
with net weight, country of origin, composition, manufacturing
and/or expiry dates. The great majority of the samples only
provided partial information in their labels. Manufacturers or
suppliers were urged to label their products informatively and
consumers were advised to find out more information about the

products they were buying.

International Comparative Tests

During the year under review, the Council also joined forces with
consumer assoications overseas and stepped up its collaborations
with ICRT to conduct international comparative tests, including

those on:

Audio-visual and optical products — MP3 and PMP players, digital
cameras, digital SLR cameras and lenses, binoculars, digital

camcorders, video projectors;

Computer and telecommunications products — mobile phone
handsets, colour inkjet printers, multi-function printers, compact

photo printers, PDA phones; and
Automobile and related products — car crash safety.

Test reports on digital products were very popular among CHOICE

readers.

Honey

In the first joint test with its South Korean counterpart, the
Consumers Korea, the Council assessed the antibiotic residues
and quality factors of 34 samples of honey and similar products (3
honey and royal jelly samples and 3 barbecue honey/honey syrup

samples).

13 (38%) of the samples were detected with residues of
chloramphenicol, streptomycin, quinolones and sulphonamides.
Among them, 6 samples (18%) were detected with
chloramphenicol ranging in level from 0.2 pg/kg to 6.4 pg/kg.
None of the samples was detected with residues of nitroflurans,

tetracyclines or macrolides.

The presence of chloramphenicol in food is prohibited under

the laws of Hong Kong. The Council referred the test results to
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the Centre for Food Safety (CFS) for their expert risk assessment.
Suppliers were urged to consider recalling products detected

with chloramphenicol and refund to consumers.

In terms of quality, 28 honey samples were assessed for their
contents of fructose and glucose, sucrose, hydroxymethylfurfural
(HMF) and moisture. A few of them failed to comply with
the Codex standard. According to the local Food and Drugs
(Composition and Labelling) Regulations, sucrose content of
honey should not be more than 5%. One sample was measured

to contain 13.6% of it.

NiMH Rechargeable Batteries

A Council joint regional test, the first of its kind in the Asia Pacific
Region in collaboration with the International Consumer Research
and Testing, found almost all rechargeable battery samples to fall
short of the capacity of their own claims. Included in the test were
14 models of AA size Nickel Metal Hydride (NiMH) rechargeable
batteries labelled with capacity ranging from 2,250 to 2,600
mAh. Under the nominal capacity test, all samples exhibited
some degrees of variance between the actual and claimed
capacity. Two samples in particular were found to fare poorly: the
capacity of one tested model was 42% and the other 52% less
than their claims. The batteries were put to an endurance test
(of 100 charging multi-cycles on high drain appliances). The test
showed that as the charging cycles increases, the capacity of the
NiMH batteries would decrease gradually. The test also showed
that higher capacity batteries were more suitable for high drain

devices, but could be more expensive to buy.

In-depth Reports on Products and Health
Issues

Apart from product tests, studies were also carried out on a wide
range of consumer products to provide consumer information

and, in some cases, to verify certain product claims.

The lists of product study reports and regular columns published

during the year are set out in Appendix 9.

Household Cleaners - Labelling and Database

Ready access to product information is of utmost importance
to medical personnel in an emergency case of poisoning by
household cleaners. The lack of adequate labelling on household
cleaners is a matter of growing concern to medical personnel in
light of rising mortality rate due to poisoning by substances other

than drugs in recent years.
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The Council’s survey of 79 household cleaners from different
categories showed that vital product information such as active
ingredients and their concentrations was lacking in many cases,
hampering the efforts of health care professionals to treat victims

of accidental poisoning.

Nearly one-third of the samples were found without any
ingredient labelling. The main categories included cleaning
solutions for floor and drains, and multi-purpose disinfectant
cleaners. Contact of the manufacturer or agent is equally
important in case of emergency. The survey also found over half

of the household cleaner samples did not give a phone number.

Manufacturers and suppliers were urged to provide better
informative labelling. If they were reluctant to do so, it was
recommended that they should at least disclose it to a central
database to be managed by an agency such as the Hong Kong
Poison Information Centre (HKPIC) which is accessible only to

health care professionals in an emergency.

After the publication of the report, a joint meeting was held
between the Council, HKPIC and the industry. Subsequently, a
task force was formed to co-ordinate the provision of product

information to the database from the industry.

PAAG Breast Augmentation

The Council issued a severe warning to women seeking breast
augmentation as information provided by the Hong Kong Society
of Plastic, Reconstructive and Aesthetic Surgery (HKSPRAS)
showed quite a number of women sought medical help because
of intense pain and suffering after breast augmentation using
PAAG (hydrophilic polyacrylamide gel) injection. The treatment
involves the simple direct injection of the transparent, gel-like
material. Some of the women even had their breast(s) completely

removed subsequently.

Soon after the Choice report was published, the authority in the

Mainland banned PAAG injections.

As appearance should never be as important as one's health,
consumers were reminded to always seek professional advice
from registered professional plastic surgeons, and to fully
understand the risks and benefits of breast augmentation

treatment.
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Ear Candling

The Council warned that ear candling has no proven medical
benefits. A hollow candle is burned with the other end inserted
into the ear canal, to create a negative pressure and draw earwax
out. According to the claims of some promoters, ear candles
are effective in reducing ear ache, itchiness of ears, headache,
migraine, stress and nervous tension. The Council cited that
Health Canada conducted laboratory tests that showed that ear
candling produces no significant heating or suction in the ear

canal.

Otorhinolaryngologists interviewed by the Council opined that
the practice of ear candling has no proven medical benefits and
is dangerous, posing a significant risk of fire because a lit candle
in close proximity to the face can cause severe burns to the skin
or hair. The public was advised that most people would not need
to take special care in managing earwax. People with earwax
problems were advised to consult physicians or other health

professionals.

Body Piercing

The Council reported on body piercing which was becoming
popular among teenagers and young adults. Body piercing has
the potential to cause local bacterial and fungal infections, as
well as transmit viral infections such as HIV, Hepatitis B and C. In
the UK and USA, a license must be obtained from the authorities
for operating a body piercing establishment or premises and the
practitioner should have appropriate training. In some places in
the US, piercing on a person under 18 years of age is prohibited

unless written parental consent can be submitted.

In Hong Kong, the Department of Heath only issued voluntary
guidelines on infection control for the trade and there is no
age-limit for piercing. Consumers have scant knowledge of the
healing times needed for the different body parts. The most
common body piercing symptoms are allergy and scar formation.
The report revealed these problems and consumers were advised

to think carefully before having their bodies pierced.

Series on Proper Use of Medication

A series of articles was published to heighten consumer
awareness on the proper use of drugs and medication in
association with the Drug Education Resources Centre of The

Society of Hospital Pharmacists of Hong Kong.

2006-07T HEEZREFER

B

A EEEL
B Tz B BB T B AR R
B - B A E BB EBTE NS ER B B

EBRXHEERUMA -EER

8 RIS B O RS RFAM - A G5 NER
RERNEBRARGR BREEBEEENREEE
RSB ISR S] °

AESHNESBRENBERHEBRABZERX
FEBEMH MEREERER HMHENERE
ATESS M RESI BN E R BRE BRI EAE
HETBERIDAART R BB EER - HERSI#MEE
ALERELSEEEATRD

BRFE
FNMFBEAMTEEFR AR RRERTER
YRR RE - SRR FIRARES BRI R EER A 2R

FRZE MERRENRZIE (BHR) ~ SBFF KN
RELRT 4 - TR B N R B BB R FRAVGATVNAR

ERMERRE BRFBATATBMES - ELE
BT BN FAT B RREREEARERE
AR

BEABREBRFAFREALTNER FEERF
ERBHEGIKRIES| - HEETAMERNRIBAE
FRENBERHEEDH > SEFRRERNWHER
BN RER - ASHHERRFES|I ZHHEE
WEEHEENGRFRIEZ=E -

(HEHAZE) R

AGHEEBERENMSESENAFTERP LS
> HR—RIIBER ERERZEYHIXE - LUREH

BEREYRNESE

27



28

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Articles included medications for smoke quitting, eczema,
menstruation problems, tips on vaccination, purchasing drugs
at drugstores and travelling. Pharmacists were invited to explain
the pharmacological effects of the ingredients of drugs and
how to avoid possible side effects that arise if drugs were used

improperly.

International Exchange

The Council pays special attention to the movement of unsafe
products into Hong Kong and will request suppliers to recall any
such products as appropriate. Through communication with
other consumer organisations and foreign authorities, such as
the US Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC), the Council
receives a constant flow of information about unsafe products

found outside Hong Konag.
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Collecting Market Information on
Services and Products

REMRFFT

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

Hong Kong has developed into a service-oriented economy
and consumers need information on a wide range of services.
The Council conducts opinion surveys, market surveys and price
surveys to collect information on services for the benefit of

consumers.

Furthermore, the Council has, for many years, collected on a
regular and systematic basis the prices of petrol, supermarket and
textbooks which are necessary goods for consumers, in order to
monitor long term trends and identify issues of concern, if any,

arising therefrom.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

Banking and Finance

Survey on Bank Charges

The Council published a study on the changes in fees and charges
for banking services over 5 years, between March 2001 and May
2006. The study found that the fees and charges for banking
services had grown not only in their levels but also in diversity.
The study also showed a progressive phase-out of bank branches
over the years from 1,463 in March 2001 to 1,209 in May 2006, an
overall reduction of 254 branches or 17%.

In the report, consumers were advised to take sensible steps
to avoid unnecessary banking service charges. For example,
consumers could merge their accounts maintained with different
banks into one to make up a bigger sum of balance. In doing so,
they could avoid low-balance account service charge and also

earn higher interest rate on their deposits.

Survey on Credit Cards

The Council conducted a survey on credit card charges as well
as the reward schemes of 22 credit card companies. It was found
that 20 of the card issuers provided cash rebates varying from 0.3%
to 1%, while 18 used reward point schemes for the redemption of
gifts and others. The study also found that there were restrictions

with regard to the provision of cash rebates or reward points. For
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instance, some credit card companies did not provide reward
for online spending/payment or spending paid for by monthly

installments.

The report set out for consumer information the charges levied by
the 22 credit card companies including counter transaction fee,
foreign currency transaction charge, over-limit charge, annual fee

and finance charge.

Financial Advice Service

In an effort to assist consumers seeking financial advice, the
Council surveyed the market to assess the service and advice
provided by financial advisers at 33 financial institutions - banks,
insurance companies and investment advisory firms. The survey
was conducted by people posing as potential customers of
different background (age, family and economic status) to

financial institutions concerned.

The survey revealed the following major areas of concern:
Non-disclosure of licensing status or qualifications of the
financial advisers. Without such disclosure, consumers lacked
the basis to assess if a financial adviser would be able to offer a
service that met their individual financial management needs
and expectations.

Lack of detailed information on remuneration in some cases
which could be regarded as misleading by consumers.

Some advisers pushed solely investment products of their
institutions under promotion, without due regard to the
status and financial management goal of the customers. The
result was that some investment advice did not suit best the
customers.

Often, only the benefits of a proposed investment were

highlighted to the neglect of the potential risks involved.

The Council advised investors to assess and choose their financial
advisers carefully with understanding of their own financial

situation and risk tolerance level.

Health and Care

Colon Hydrotherapy

The Council’s survey on colon hydrotherapy uncovered an array
of highly dubious claims of efficacy in health maintenance and
disease prevention. The survey found that colon hydrotherapy
was frequently promoted by its practitioners to be a safe, effective
method of removing waste from the large intestine without the

use of drugs. It was also claimed to be a means to detoxify the
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body through the removal of accumulated waste from the colon
and thus help improve skin condition, attain weight loss, eliminate
toxins, prevent or improve constipation. But medical opinions
were overwhelmingly in contrary to these claims. In the opinion
of the Department of Health, for instance, there was inadequate
scientific basis to support the suggestions that toxins accumulate
on intestinal walls, or that toxicity results from poor elimination
of waste from the colon. Further, there was inadequate scientific
evidence to substantiate that colon hydrotherapy could cure
specific diseases such as arthritis, sinusitis and cancer as claimed

in advertisements.

As the law now stands, colon hydrotherapy is not a conventional
Western medical treatment and as such it does not come under
the regulation of any specific legislation in Hong Kong. The
Council warned that consumers receiving such treatment should
be wary that they were exposing themselves to hazards at their

own risk.

Survey on Residential Care Homes for the Elderly

To follow up on public concern over the charging practices
of certain private elderly homes service revealed in a news
report, the Council invited 571 private elderly homes to provide
information on their monthly fees, miscellaneous charges, and
their pricing and refund practices. A total of 185 homes (32.4%)
responded and the price they charged for monthly fee ranged
from $2,000 to $24,750. While monthly fee would basically cover
boarding, rent, meals and care services, consumers were advised
to check the items that needed to be paid separately, such as
physiotherapy, entertainment, medical supplies and personal care

products.

Besides pricing, vast differences were also found in practices on
refund of deposit and the unused portion of monthly fees in
the event of prolonged hospitalization and death. 60% of the
respondents indicated that they would not refund the remaining
part of the monthly fees on early termination of residence. In
the case of sudden death, 50.8% would not provide refund.
On deposit, 15.7% of the respondents replied that they did not
require a deposit on admission. 77.8% claimed they would refund
the deposit on termination of residence with sufficient notice and

7% would not refund the deposit in any event.

The Council was of the view that elderly homes should consider
refunding at least the unused part of monthly fees for meals in

cases of prolonged hospitalization or sudden death, and deposit
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should be returned within a reasonable period if no payment was

outstanding.

Daily Living

Supermarket Price Survey

In the year under report, the Council based its supermarket price
survey on scan data from supermarkets. The report covered
a basket of 200 items of commodities sold in supermarkets.
The aggregate average price of the basket fell by 1.3% in 2005
compared to 2004. Despite the overall price drop, the findings
showed that the price for two categories, namely canned food/
soup and dairy products, actually rose 4.1% and 0.7% respectively
in aggregate average prices when compared to 2004. On the
other hand, prices for nine categories were down ranging from
0.5% to 5.3%. They included paper/household cleaning products,
baby products and food, staple food, bread/cakes, beverages, hot
drinks, non-staple food/sauces, biscuits/snacks, and personal care

products.

Textbook Expenditure Survey

The survey was extended to cover, for the first time, textbook
expenditure for matriculation classes, and revealed average
textbook expenditure for all primary classes and all forms in
secondary schools. For the school year 2006-2007, the average
expenditure on textbooks was $1,894 for primary students and
$1,756 for secondary students. When compared against textbook
expenditure for the sampled schools last year, increases of 5.2%
and 3.7% were recorded. As the number of "must buy” books
varied greatly among schools, expenditure for matriculation

classes could vary a great deal.

Opinion Survey on Reliability of Electrical Appliances
The Council conducted a questionnaire survey to collect
consumers’ opinion on four domestic electrical appliances: air-
conditioners, washing machines or 2-in-1 washer dryers, TV sets,
and computers. 1,457 valid responses were received. Survey
results showed that consumers reported a lower fault rate for
window-type air-conditioners than spilt-type, that they found
washing machines less prone to faults than washer dryers, and
“branded” computers had less faults than assembled computers.
However, for TV sets, consumers reported similar fault rates for

CRTTVsets, LCD TV sets and Plasma TV sets.
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Respondents also ranked factors affecting their buying decisions.
For the household electrical appliances, the top three factors
chosen were the product’s functions, price, and their experience
with the brand/product. However, when choosing computers,
respondents attached greater importance to the functions of the
machines and after-sales compared to the household electrical

appliances.
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Disseminating Consumer Information

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

Promoting consumer awareness through dissemination of
consumer information is crucial to consumer empowerment and
protection. As consumers become better informed, they will be
better able to safeguard their interests against undesirable trade
practices and unsafe goods and services, to exercise rational
choices and contribute to sustainable consumption. Towards this
end, Consumer Council is engaged in a diverse range of activities
aimed at disseminating consumer information in a constant effort
to enhance both consumer awareness, and foster community

support for its work.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE
Publication of CHOICE

Our monthly publication CHOICE provides a regular outlet of
information, advice and viewpoints on all matters of interest to
consumers. Published in Chinese, CHOICE reports the results
and conclusions, with brandname information, of comparative
product testing, and service assessment through surveys and
in-depth studies. Regular columns of special interest focusing
on topics such as health and nutrition, consumer complaints,
hazardous products, environmental concerns, drug safety,
investor education, and issues of global consumer concern are

also included.

CHOICE does not accept any commercial advertising. In addition
to copyright protection, Section 20 of the Consumer Council
Ordinance strictly prohibits the exploitation of the Council’s
name or its research information for commercial and promotional
purposes. Section 20 is essential for protecting the independence
and impartiality of the Council in its evaluation of goods and

services available to consumers in the market.

CHOICE has maintained its enormous influence as the
independent authoritative source of research-based consumer
information and guidance to the public. Its reach is far beyond
its magazine and online readership, through frequent prominent
media coverage penetrating all sectors of the community and

households in Hong Kong.
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CHOICE has consistently drawn immense media interest ever
since its debut appearance in 1976. A press conference is held
to launch the publication of each and every issue of CHOICE,
generating widespread coverage in all sectors of the media.
Active assistance is also provided to meet media requests for

additional coverage of articles of specific interest.

CHOICE Celebrates 30th Anniversary

CHOICE turned 30 in the year under review. To mark this
momentous occasion of three decades of publication since
November 1976, a contest was held for readers to cast their votes
on the top 10 most significant consumer issues ever reported
in CHOICE. For this purpose, a list of 20 issues was drawn up for
the voting of the readers to choose which 10 issues in their view
had the greatest significance and impact on consumers over the
years. The contest drew a total of 890 readers, and the results are

indicative of the aspirations and expectations of our loyal readers.

The top honour went to CHOICE reporting on the safety (and
performance) of a wide range of household electrical appliances
such as electric fans, air conditioners and water heaters, etc. The
consistent reporting of these products culminated in the eventual

enactment of the Electrical Products (Safety) Regulation in 1997.

Following closely in second place was the global controversy
over genetically modified food. CHOICE was amongst the first
publications in Hong Kong to raise the public awareness of this
important issue with a series of tests on GM food available to

consumers in the Hong Kong market.
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In the third place was one of the daily essential foodstuffs — edible
oil, the subject of the Council’s first comparative product testing
for the inaugural issue of CHOICE in 1976, radically changing
consumers' reliance on product information solely from the
manufacturers, to a new era of independent and impartial market
information for consumers. Results of the voting on the top 10

issues are, in their sequence, as follows:

Household Electrical Appliances (675 votes)
Genetically Modified Food (674 votes)
Edible Oil (646 votes)

Supermarket Pricing (565 votes)

Slimming and Body Fitness (558 votes)
Contamination of Seafood (551 votes)
Credit Cards (533 votes)
Breast Enlargement PAAG (514 votes)
Water Treatment Devices (494 votes)

Condoms (461 votes)

As part of the 30th Anniversary celebration, a special promotional
package is in offer in a drive to recruit more CHOICE subscribers
of both print and online. It includes a free gift especially produced
to mark the occasion — a handy shopping guide on 33 household
electrical appliances and audio/video equipment, on top of a

discount off the cover price.

Multi-media CHOICE: Access for All

CHOICE has the distinction of being the first amongst consumer
organisations in the world, to provide a fully multi-media access
for all — from print to internet online, fixed lines and mobile

phones users.

From a monthly magazine of hard copy only, CHOICE was ushered
three years ago into the realm of online transmission in cooperation
with a major internet service provider through the website (http://
choice.yp.com.hk). CHOICE Online, a full PDF version in both
traditional and simplified Chinese, provides all of the reports in
each current edition and an archive of now over five years of back
issues of CHOICE for access by all internet users, for viewing on
annual subscription or per issue or per report basis. The demand
for online independent and impartial consumer information has
grown steadily: the numbers of pageviews, and in the visitor

sessions were 2.29 million and 290,000 respectively in 2006.

With the inauguration of the new service to include fixed-line
and mobile phone users, CHOICE has truly become a multi-

media consumer information service accessible to a wide cross
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section of the community — literally at their finger tip at anytime
and anywhere. Through PCCW New Generation Residential Fixed
Line and PCCW Mobile, consumers will now be able to access a
selected number of mainly test and survey reports complete with
brandname information in CHOICE. To fit into the new format of
transmission, only an abridged text version of a maximum of 600
characters/spaces for each report is provided. For fixed-line users,

an audio version is also available.

CHOICE is available to the general public through sales
of subscriptions and retail outlets covering newsstands,
supermarkets, convenience stores and bookshops throughout
the territory. During the year 2006, the combined sales averaged
24,758 copies per issue, splitting quite evenly between
subscriptions and retail sales. The cover price of CHOICE is $12 per
copy while the regular subscription rates for one year (12 issues)
and two years (24 issues) are currently $110 and $200 respectively.
A diversified marketing programme that included notably media
publicity, poster campaigns, exhibition sales, mail drops, price
discount promotions and free gifts, etc. was conducted at regular

intervals.

Media Liaison

Media relations are actively fostered, and the Council is virtually
in daily contact with the mass media on all matters of consumer
interest. Regular press conferences, news releases, briefings and
interviews were arranged for all sectors of the media, contributing
significantly to the dissemination of consumer information and
advice to the public. The role the media play is much valued
by the Council. It helps to heighten consumer awareness and
understanding of the diverse range of functions and activities
the Council performs in the protection and empowerment of

consumers. It also helps gain community support.

Media reporting of the Council’s publicity sanction against traders
found persistently engaged in malpractices against consumers, is
protected from defamation action by “qualified privilege” provided

it is“fair and accurate”.

Consumer Rights Reporting Awards

The Consumer Rights Reporting Awards has gained increasing
recognition of the news media as a coveted award for professional
excellence. The Awards was the seventh organised by the
Consumer Council in association with the Hong Kong Journalists
Association (HKJA) since 2000. This year's Awards attracted a total
of 287 entries in the five categories of news (127), features (48),

television (32), radio (12) and press photo (68) covering a wide
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diverse range of issues of consumer interest and concern. The
number represents a 53% increase over last year (187 entries),
and 310% over 2000 (70 entries). A list of the winning entries is at
Appendix 11.

Top Ten Consumer News

The public concern over health that led to the ban on cigarette
smoking in all restaurants was voted the top story in the Top Ten
Consumer News for the Year of the Dog. The event, in this third
year, was organised jointly by the Council in association with
News Channel of Hong Kong Cable Television, Radio Television
Hong Kong and Hong Kong Economic Times, with Fan, Chan and

Co. as the Honorary Auditor.

Members of the public were invited to select and vote for the top
10 consumer news, out of a list of 20, which in their view were
uppermost on the mind of consumers during the Year of the
Dog in Hong Kong. It drew a total of 2,712 voters who cast their
votes online or in print entry forms during the period between 16

January and 6 February 2007.

Besides public concern over their health through second-hand
smoking, the internet chaos in the aftermath of the Taiwan
earthquake came second place in the voting. The third most
voted entry was related to the rising public concern over the
safety of food from the mainland, as revealed in the Sudan Red
contaminated eggs incident. Full results and their vote count of
the Top 10 Consumer News of the Year of the Dog, in their order,

are as follows:

Ban on Cigarette Smoking in All Restaurants (2,525 votes)
Internet Chaos Following Taiwan Earthquake (2,380 votes)
Eggs Contaminated with Sudan Red (2,255 votes)
Government Shelves Goods and Services Tax Consultation
(2,178 votes)

Controversy over Malacrite Green Leads to Mainland
Suspension of Fresh Water Fish Export (2,090 votes)

Zero Fare Tours Complaints (1,958 votes)

Frequent Breakdown of Newly Inaugurated Cable Car Service
(1,825 votes)

Rising Reminbi Raises Inflation Concerns (1,805 votes)

The Disneyland's Lunar New Year Chaos (1,663 votes)

Pesticide Residues in Locally Grown Vegetable (1,416 votes)
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The Website

Besides dissemination through the mass media, the Council’s
website also provides a wide range of information for easy access
by consumers. Information posted includes information on our
structure and services, research reports and submissions to the
Government and the Legislative Council, as well as press releases
and competition study reports, consumer complaint forms,

CHOICE indexes and subscription forms, etc.

World Consumer Rights Day

The World Consumer Rights Day 2007 was marked by the official
opening of the Council's new permanent office to accommodate
the Complaint and Advice Division at Kodak House II, No. 39
Healthy Street East, North Point.

The purchase of the new premises was made possible with a
special government grant. Officiating the opening ceremony, the
Secretary for Economic Development and Labour, Mr. Stephen
IP, congratulated the Council and stressed that a new permanent
office was much needed in view of the increasing number
of consumer complaint cases and enquiries received by the

Consumer Council over the years.

Prof. K.C. CHAN, Council Chairman, said the Council would
continue its work in the mediation and resolution of complaints
between consumers and the business, and to promote their

mutual understanding and trust.
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Empowering Consumers through Education

HE

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

The Council attaches great importance to its consumer
empowerment objective of which consumer education forms an
integral part. Through a systematic programme for various target
groups, participants acquired the necessary skills and know-
how of rational consumption. Their awareness of the rights and

responsibilities of consumers was heightened as a result.

The Council has provided institutional support to other
organisations and educational institutes to enable them to
run their own consumer education programmes. Tailor-made
activities are designed to cater for three major target groups —
namely young people, senior citizens and new immigrants. The
latter two groups are more vulnerable to trade malpractices and

in need of guidance.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

During the year, 203 educational talks, visits, workshops and
seminars were organised for the above three target groups.
The themes of these activities included consumer rights and
responsibilities, consumer protection laws, consumer traps,
sustainable consumption, e-commerce/shopping, consumer
guides on the purchase of dried seafood, electrical appliances and
health foods etc.

The Council has also organised the Consumer Culture Study
Award as well as teacher training programmes to promote

consumer education in schools.

Education resource materials were also produced to facilitate
trainers to conduct consumer education programmes on their

own.

These programmes were held both in the Consumer Council
Resource Centre as well as schools and other community centres

to meet demands from different sectors of the society.
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Enhancing Youth Awareness in Consumer
Rights

Consumer Culture Study Award

The Award, jointly organised with the Education and Manpower
Bureau (EMB) for the eighth consecutive year, is the largest and
well-received territory-wide project-based learning programme
designed for local secondary schools. Participants have to study
a particular aspect of our local consumer culture, exploring
the consumer attitudes, values and behaviours in Hong Kong.
Over the years, the Award has generated a fruitful collection of
over 3,300 study reports based on first-hand data collected by
students, and in turn, helped enrich the archives of studies on

local consumer culture.

A record high of 700 teams from 106 secondary schools took part

in this year's Award. A list of the winners is at Appendix 12

Introductory talks on consumer issues and how to conduct
the study were organised for teachers and students attracting
more than 1,700 participants to such sessions. It was through
these talks and the subsequent active engagement of students
in conducting the study that their understanding of consumer

issues was enhanced and analytical ability strengthened.

48 workshops covering 15 thematic topics were organised for
some 2,300 teachers and students as an extension activity of the
Study Award. These workshops aimed at stimulating creativity,
arousing interest on issues like consumer responsibilities and
sustainable consumption as well as exposing participants to
concepts and methods in conducting and presenting consumer

culture studies.
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Youth Development Service Scheme

The Youth Development Service Scheme aims to provide an
opportunity for the trained youth volunteer leaders learning
more about consumer issues through involvement in Council’s
activities. These youth leaders took up tasks, such as presentations
to community groups and production of educational materials,
independently. They are also actively involved in the running of
various events and projects of the Consumer Education Division.
Currently, over 20 secondary students and university undergrads

are involved in the Scheme, with new recruits joining each year.

Education Programmes for the Vulnerable

Groups
For Senior Citizens
Over 90 programs were delivered to the senior citizens through

joint efforts with social and community services organizations.

Programmes were tailored to meet the special needs and

consumption patterns of the senior citizens.

The programmes were mainly on health and safety concerns in
selecting and consuming products and services related to this
particular cohort. These include health food and equipment,

household appliances and dried seafood.

Precautions from falling into common consumer traps were also
popular topics which include subscribing telecommunication
services and contractual obligations in different payment

methods.

For New Immigrants
Regular programmes including visits and talks were also
developed for the new immigrants to familiarize them with local

consumer protection measures.

Participants were introduced to local characteristics in culture,
practices and legal rights pertaining to daily consumption.
Channels and methods to lodge complaints and get redress
were also introduced in the programmes to enhance the new

immigrants their self-protecting abilities.
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Training the Trainers

Teacher Development Courses on Consumer
Education

Government's recent curricular reforms responded favorably to
the Council's call for incorporating consumer education in the
wider school curricular. To meet the increasing demand, the
Education & Manpower Bureau (EMB) commissioned the Council
to design and host the following two Teacher Development
Courses in 2007.

Teacher Development Courses on Learning and

Teaching PSHE KLA through Consumer Perspective

A web-based teacher training course on Learning and Teaching
PSHE KLA (Personal, Social and Humanities Education Key
Learning Area) through Consumer Perspective would be organised
for secondary schools teachers to enhance their competence
and confidence in conducting consumer education in schools

throughout social and humanity subjects.

The 30-hour course aims to train 200 teachers in five batches
starting from mid- 2007 till February 2009. Additional courses

would be held pending on enrollment outcome.

Professional Development Programme for Liberal
Studies: NSS Independent Enquiry Studies in the LS

Curriculum

Also commissioned by the Education & Manpower Bureau,
the programme aims to assist teachers who would be leading
students in conducting study projects as an integral part of the
new Liberal Studies (LS) curriculum, in which consumer culture is

deemed to be a popular theme of studies.

The design of the program would be based on the successful
experiences gained by the Council in enhancing effectiveness
in Project-based Learning through the highly acclaimed Study
Award.

Workshop exercises, learning activities as well as assessment
principles, through ample examples of the Study Award, would

be introduced.

The programme consists of 6 three-day training workshops each
for 40 teachers, starting in late March till August 2007.
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Training Workshops for Teachers

Organized by the School Support and Development Branch (Yuen
Long District), EMB, 5 teacher training workshops were conducted
by the Council, from October 2006 to February 2007, to equip the
40 participating teachers with concepts and tools pertaining to

Project-based Learning.

The Council was also invited by the Technology Education
Section, EMB, to conduct a two-day training workshop on
designing effective learning activities in Life and Technology for

36 teachers in August.

Teaching Resources Development
Education Resources Kit on Project-based Learning
for PSHE at Secondary Level

The Resources Kit, commissioned by EMB, aims to provide
teachers with handy tools and successful examples in the training

and learning through project studies in consumer culture.

The Kit would use three major winning student project reports
of the Seventh Consumer Culture Study Award as exemplary
projects, together with adjudicators' views and comments;
project team members' experience sharing; as well as workshop
exercises and learning activities to demonstrate the Council's
unique experiences in enhancing the teaching and learning
of generic skills including but not limited to knowledge
construction, creativity, critical thinking as well as communication

and presentation skills.

The Kit would be dispatched to all secondary schools in mid 2007.

Other Education Resources

Sponsored by EMB, the DVD-ROM containing the winning reports
of Consumer Culture Study Award VIl was reproduced and
distributed to all secondary schools as a teaching resource. 2,000

copies were made and sent in mid-December of 2006.

The interactive drama game developed with support from the
Quality Education Fund was also useful resources for teachers.
Other educational resources included two teaching kits on
labelling and advertising, a consumer education resource kit for
new immigrants. These were in great demand by schools and

community organisations.
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Consumer Council Resource Centre

Located in Tsim Sha Tsui, the Council's Resource Centre was
opened to service in October 2001. Facilities include a Consumer
Advice Centre, an exhibition-cum-lecture hall equipped
with audio-visual devices, and a resource library. Multimedia
computers were installed giving visitors' access to the Council's
web site and educational resources. During the year, the Resource
Centre attracted 1,136 visitors from over a hundred educational

institutes and community organizations.
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Improving Legal Protection

MegE R B R RIE

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

Consumers’ legal rights should be protected by law. We keep
abreast of developments in the law that may affect consumer
welfare. The Council contributed to the discussion in this regard

via submissions to the Government.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

Copyright

We made submission to the Bills Committee on Copyright
(Amendment) Bill 2006.

While the Council was pleased to note that non-business end-
users of infringing copies bear no criminal liability under the
existing law and the Bill, it urged that all business end-user

criminal liabilities be removed at an opportune time.

The Council showed grave reservation over the reversal of burden
of proof under the proposed offences regarding possession and

distribution of infringing copy by employees, directors or partners.

As regards circumvention of copyright protection technological
measures, the Council opined that neither civil remedy nor
criminal sanction should be introduced on the grounds that such
limitations would prevent the use of genuine parallel imports and

hinder market advancement in technology.

Amendment of Section 13, the Conveyancing
and Property Ordinance

The Department of Justice sought the views of the Council
regarding the Law Society's proposed amendment to Section 13
of the said Ordinance which would remove the duty of property
vendor to produce original pre-intermediate root title deeds in

showing good title.

The Council expressed its support for the proposed amendment.
While not giving rise to any serious legal problem, it would reduce
the possibility of failure to complete the transaction on technical

ground, and save the time and costs of transaction.

AR ER RENERYE

BRENEEEREDAERE - EEE—H
AR EERERBOEERR BB E882
SRR ARBRAREER

%

W

AT AR
hl 1

AGR2006F ARE(ERNRBIEZR
B

/I]]]u
m
@

REHENERRILREERBAGERBIERIRE
ERE ARITEAENERPHAS FHSEEE Rl
(B EREEER RRREEMNREEREREES
EFTEMS=EE-

BHES EFAEUANERLREERRIES
MARFFITHE AR ERCEIZTERENES
FREZRERRE -

ARE B/ AEIEUREINEF RGN E AR
BRERERMN T A ARERSHETEE
B9 DU BB AE TR RUHT

MEE SRV ERGE+=IREVIERT

REARTERMRRHEX LT RMER
BIE+=HORE AASUEER BRETREE
MR EERRTREREE  TH TR
RIR R EARES -

REHEZFTTT IWBR—TTEAREYER S
KEAG RN RIS A — T EA RSB
BENZEEE WAMHERZHREESE -



Land Titles (Amendment) Bill

The Council commented on the Working Draft of the said Bill. It
suggested that Clause 19 of the Bill - provisions about the legal
effect of registration of instruments regarding property and its

exceptions, should be improved in its readability and clarity.

The Council further suggested that standard notice forms should
be designed for the application for registration of non-consent
caution for convenient use by lay members of the public. The
Land Registrar should take into account the costs implications
on the applicant when requiring him to produce evidence

supporting his application.

As the implementation of the proposed land title system might
give rise to family conflicts or social disharmony, the Council
reiterated the need to examine the system from a perspective

broader than a strict legal perspective.

Moreover, as the first sale of a property after conversion of the
systems was critical to beneficiaries of unwritten equities, the
Council reiterated that the feasibility of pre-sale notice should be
studied.

Wasted Costs in Criminal Cases

The Council submitted its views on the proposed expansion of
section 18 of the Costs in Criminal Cases Ordinance to the effect
that any costs incurred by a party to criminal proceedings as a
result of unjustifiable conduct on the part of his/her legal or other
representative would be borne by that lawyer or representative.
The Council urged that the circumstances constituting the liability
to bear the wasted costs should be clearly defined and proper
safeguard should be given against the award of wasted costs so
that the proposed expansion of the said provisions would not

produce an inhibitive effect on the legal representative.

Unsolicited Electronic Messages Bill
The Council welcomed the government's initiative in introducing
anti-spam legislation which demonstrated Hong Kong's

commitment to global spam control.

The Council was concerned about the effectiveness of the Bill.
It pointed out that the rules supporting the proposed "Opt-out
Regime" might rather defeat the purpose of the legislation than
achieve it. In this connection, the Council called for expediting
international co-operation to tackle the problem of extra-
territorial enforcement and preventive measures to alleviate the

possibility of abuse.
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The Council expressed its disappointment at the proposal that
person-to-person marketing calls be excluded from the Bill. If that
was the case, consumers could still be disturbed by telemarketers.
The Council urged the government to consider the feasibility
of assigning special number prefix for marketing calls so that
consumers could screen off the messages at their discretion.
Consequently, caller-party charging scheme could be instigated
to encourage telemarketers to be more selective when sending

out messages.

Solicitors' Rights of Audience

The Council gave comments on the Consultation Paper on
Solicitors' Rights of Audience prepared by a working party of the
Chief Justice. It supported the direction of extending the rights
of audience in the higher courts to suitably qualified solicitors
provided that the extension would enhance litigants' choice of
competent advocates; not compromise the quality of professional
services rendered to litigants; and ensure the continued provision
of specialized expertise in court advocacy. To achieve these
purposes, the Council suggested that consumers should have
access to information on the areas of expertise of solicitors before
appointment; and an independent and credible accreditation
system should be set up to determine solicitors' eligibility for the

rights of audience in higher courts.
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Promoting Sustainable Consumption

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT
Consumers as ultimate users can exert influence in the sustainable
consumption and production equation, although the latter is a

much stronger party.

The Council promotes and supports sustainable consumption
through comparative product testing and dissemination of
information which enables consumers to make environmentally
friendly choices, and also encourages them to help conservation

of natural resources and waste reduction.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

In comparative product testing, environmental parameters such
as energy efficiency, recyclability of products and packaging
materials, durability and emissions of volatile organic compounds
are often incorporated with a view to informing consumers
about the use of products and their impacts on health and the

environment.

Printers

The cost of consumables such as ink or toner cartridges and
electricity consumption are of concern to consumers when
buying printers. The Council published four test reports on various
kinds of printers including inkjet, laser, all-in-one, and photo
printer models. It was found that the ink cost varied substantially
from model to model. On the assumption of a weekly output of
three letters, two coloured documents and one photo, the annual
ink cost of the test samples was found to differ by as much as
two times for inkjet printers. Some printers were also found to
consume higher levels of electricity during standby and switched-
off modes. In monetary terms, one pays an estimated extra of

under $1 to $85 a year in electricity bills.

Durability, recyclability of packaging and product materials and

noise levels of the printers were also assessed and rated.
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Air Conditioners

As air conditioners are heavy users of electricity, their energy
efficiency is one of the key factors that affect consumers’ choice.
However, the Council’s test on 15 models of window-type air
conditioners found discrepancy between the tested and claimed

values of energy efficiency.

All samples in the test carried the Grade 1 energy label of the
voluntary Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme. When the test
data were converted into the Energy Consumption Indices of the
scheme, the values of four samples were found to fall below the

requirement for Grade 1.

It was estimated that the annual running electricity cost of the
models ranged from $1,322 to $1,615 a year — a difference of 18%
or $293 annually.

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)

The Council supported the enactment of the Air Pollution Control
(Volatile Organic Compounds) Regulation. Prescribing maximum
VOC content for various regulated products and prohibiting
in due course the manufacture and importation of products
that exceeded the maximum limit were instrumental measures

towards the introduction of VOC control.

The Council suggested that the government should launch
an educational publicity drive targeted to raise awareness and
understanding of the general public as well as the industry
members. With increased awareness about the product labels to
be carried, it was hoped that consumers and painters would be
able to choose more environmentally friendly products to help

alleviate the problem of air pollution.
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Representing the Consumer Voice

HERL

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT

Everyone is a consumer. Our efforts to promote consumer
interests will become more effective when we work closely with

other partners and stakeholders locally and overseas.

WHAT WE HAVE DONE

Locally, we maintain close liaison with the Government through
the Economic Development and Labour Bureau, which oversees
consumer protection and competition policy and from which
envelop 92% of our operating funds are derived. Liaison with
over 10 other bureaux and 30 Government departments are
well established, facilitating our work in addressing specific
consumer issues that fall within their purview. We also attach
great importance to working with community groups, regulators,

professional bodies and trade associations.

Council's Representation on Other Bodies

Our representatives serve on a large number of public advisory
committees and boards of regulatory or statutory bodies. We
presented views from the consumer perspective in the regulation
and monitoring of various business sectors, including financial,
legal and telecommunications services as well as the tourist and
insurance industries. By serving on relevant committees, Council
representatives expressed consumer concerns and sought to
enhance consumer protection relating to consumer health and
safety, residential properties, financial and telecommunications
services, regulating travel and estate agency business as well as
environmental protection initiatives. Our views were formulated
with first-hand knowledge of consumer needs acquired through
surveys and direct contacts with consumers and traders. A full list
of external committees and statutory bodies with representation

by Council Members or staff is at Appendix 13.

Close Liaison with Counterparts in the
Mainland

Close liaison with the Council's counterparts in the Mainland (over

3,500 consumers associations in the whole country) is maintained
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through exchange of information, referral of complaints and
receiving delegations from consumer associations and related
bodies from different parts of the Mainland and training is
offered to them. During the year, 367 Mainland officials visited
the Council. Council's representatives attended seminars held
by Mainland consumer organisations, such as the 3.15 Forum
on "Consumption and the Environment" held by Guangzhou
Consumer Council and the seminar on protection of consumer

rights by China Consumers’ Association (CCA).

With tourists from the Mainland topping the list of visitors to Hong
Kong, the Council has taken a proactive role in ensuring shopping
satisfaction of mainland tourists. Since 2004, Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) for Co-operation of Consumers' Rights and
Interests have been signed with consumer associations in Beijing,
Shanghai, Fujian Province, Zhejiang Province, Shantung Province
and Macau. The MOUs facilitate information exchanges and

assistance in resolving consumer disputes among the regions.

In the year under review, the importance of our networking
efforts to consumer protection was manifest in two issues. One
was concerned with the CHOICE report on PAAG, a carcinogenic
substance that had been used in breast augmentation. Having
been informed of the findings in the report, CCA and consumer
organisations in Shanghai, Fujian, Guangzhou, Shenzhen
and Macau issued warning against PAAG immediately. PAAG
subsequently was officially banned in China. Another issue
was concerned with zero reception fee tours. Through liaison
with CCA, a joint statement between CCA and the Council was
announced to urge tourism regulatory authorities and the travel
industry to consider suggestions to strengthen protection of
outbound travellers' consumer rights. Consumers were also
advised to exercise their power in proper ways. The information
was being disseminated to reach 3,200 consumer organisations in

the Mainland, and in Australia, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia.

Collaboration at Regional and International
Levels

As an active member of the International Consumer Research
& Testing (ICRT), the Council contributed ideas for joint tests
that benefited all members sharing the test results. Council's
representatives attended two ICRT meetings in 2006, namely
the ICRT Evaluation Seminar in Barcelona and the Asian
Pacific meeting in Singapore. In the year under review, two
training sessions were offered to officials from the Asia Pacific

region, including the one given as part of the 3rd World Trade
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Organisation Regional Trade Policy Course organised jointly by
the WTO and the University of Hong Kong and the one arranged
for the National Telecommunications Commission of Thailand.
The Council also keeps abreast of the global development of
consumer movement by taking part in international fora on
various consumer issues. Major conferences/seminars with the
Council's participation during the year included the Singapore
Direct Selling Association Seminar, Kickoff Meeting of the Global
Trustmark Alliance and the Summit of Global Business Dialogue
on Electronic Commerce. Exchanges with overseas experts and
consumer activists on these occasions enhanced the Council's
foresight in overcoming emerging challenges in the ever-

changing consumer market.

The Council is elected executive and council member of
the Consumer International (Cl), a federation of consumer
organisations comprising over 230 members from 113 countries.
Consumers International has two main goals: to support and
strengthen member organisations and the consumer movement
in general and to represent consumer interests at global and
regional levels, e.g. at the Codex Alimentarius Commission on
food standards, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD), etc.
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The Consumer Council has

long been an advocate of the
introduction of a cross-sector
competition law in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hassan Qaqgaya (above), from
UNCTAD’s Competition and
Consumer Policies Branch, was

- . A forum for exchange of views on the need for a competition law in Hong Kong was convened for representatives of small and
invited to address a audience

on “International Experience on medium enterprises: (seated from L to R) Mr. Michael Wong of the Economic Development and Labour Bureau, Prof. K. C. Chan,

Competition Law” at a luncheon the Council Chairman, Mr. Ricky Wong of the telecommunications sector, and Mr. Lee Kwong-lam of the retail sector.

in Hong Kong. AEHFPNECRARBEEXNE UABREREATRFLITRER  (ALAAER) NERERS I BEERLE
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Prof. K.C. Chan and Mrs. Pamela Chan,
the Council Chief Executive, showing a
comparison of the growing number of
countries (as coloured in red) which have
adopted competition law in recent years, at a
pumazne § . press conference upon the submission of the

COMSUMER CO!

Council’s report to the Government’s public
consultation on the issue.
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During the year, the Council relocated its Complaint and Advice

- ) ) ) \\ = (=] e
Division to a new premises at Kodak House in North Point. ~ E [inwi]
Officiating the opening ceremony is the Secretary for Economic . =
Development and Labour, the Hon. Stephen Ip Shu-kwan, GBS, JP. ? ﬁ E Y=
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The Hon. Stephen Ip taking a keen interest in the work of consumer
complaint and advisory service during a tour of the new office.
Accompanying him are (L to R) Mrs. Pamela Chan, Ms. Connie Lau,
the new Chief Executive Designate, Prof. Chan, and Mr. Larry Kwok,
the Council Vice-Chairman.
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At the prize-presentation ceremony of the 6th Consumer Rights
Reporting Awards, the Permanent Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour, Ms. Eva Cheng, JP, (above left) presenting
the Gold Award to the top winner of the entries in Radio Category.
CEBRESTRBEENERBNEL L MRETECEHEER
HEmERE AN 2EE-

A winning performance by the top
school team in the junior section at
the prize-presentation ceremony
of the 7th Consumer Cultural Study
Awards.
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Recipients of the Gold Awards from all five categories of entries in News, Features, Television,
Radio and Press Photos, in the annual competition organised jointly by the Consumer Council
and the Hong Kong Journalists Association.
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Prof. Chan posing for a group photo with the winners
from the public in the voting of the Top 10 Consumer
News of the Year of the Dog organised annually by the
Council in association with Cable TV (News Channel),
RTHK, and Hong Kong Economic Times.
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The Council’s CHOICE monthly magazine celebrates its 30th anniversary in publication, with a

cake-cutting ceremony and a special commemorative poster featuring the front covers of all *m&_&!mﬂaﬂ:ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂéhﬁ%

360 issues from November 1976 to October 2006. xa Eo
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ONS UM % An impressive array of expertise at the CHOICE press

conference presided over by Mr. Larry Kwok (third from

L), Chairman of Publicity and Community Relations

Committee, to launch the 354 issue in April. In this issue

was exposed the hazard in the use of PAAG in breast
enlargement.
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Another CHOICE press conference in progress chaired
by Prof. Ching Pak-chung, Vice-Chairman of Publicity
and Community Relations Committee, to launch the 360
issue in October, alerting the public to the health risk of
acrylamide (a probable human carcinogen) in many snack
favourites of children and teenagers.
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Chief Executive Mrs. Pamela Chan (L) and her successor Ms. Connie Lau B (GE2) BHES S REARBS/NENEFFTAE
(R), reporting at a press briefing on the Council’s study on “the Impact PSR/ B AAE S R RS  ATaES A SEEUS -

of Branch Closures and Fee Increases of Banks on Disadvantaged

Consumers".
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A party to bid farewell to Mrs. Pamela Chan and
welcome to Ms. Connie Lau. Posing for a group
photo with current and former Council Members
after presentation of a souvenir to Mrs. Chan by
Prof. Chan are (L to R): Mr. Larry Kwok , Ms. Connie
Lau, Mr. Tang Kwan-nang, Dr. the Hon Sarah Liao,
JP, Secretary for Environment, Transport and Works,
Mrs. Chan, Prof. Chan, Prof. Andrew Chan, Mr.
Ambrose Ho, Dr. Mathew NG, Mr. Kenneth So.
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The incoming Chief Executive, Ms. Connie Lau, receiving a flower bouquet
from the Chairman.
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Announcing the appointment of
Ms. Connie Lau as the new Chief
Executive with effect from 1 April,
2007 at a press reception.
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Mrs. Pamela Chan giving her

farewell speech and expressing
her gratitude to friends,
associates and colleagues on the
occasion.
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2006 - 2007
Membership of the Consumer Council
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Chairperson L J&
Prof. K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP BRZRs&a##% » SREFEE » KFEMHT

Vice-Chairperson B ¥ J&
Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, JP SRHREE#RET » KM+

Members £ 5

Mr. William CHAN Che-kwong (from 1.1.07) BREE4E4 (F1.1.07)

Prof. The Hon. Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung, BBS, JP IRIAR#IT » SAKFESE » X F#4+
Dr. Polly CHEUNG Suk-yee (from 1.1.07) 3RiFUEEE4 (F1.1.07)

Prof. CHING Pak-chung (up to 31.12.06) {8 ##% (£31.12.06)

Mr. Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP 2@ H%c4 » 5B EFHE - KFH+

Mrs. Christine FUNG TAM Pui-ling /5@ M¥ 2zt

Mr. Ambrose HO, SC {alia & g A2 6

Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen (from 1.1.07) FEREZE (1.1.07)
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04/1974 - 03/1975 Sir KAN Yuet-keung, CBE, JP
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THENAENSF=R  ZFEFEELT > OBE» CBE » K¥F#+
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10/1988 - 10/1991 The Hon. Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP
JNNETREAN—F+R  THERE  ERKEM - XFELT
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BRIK S

Centralised Telephone Hotline Centre &

8 Consumer Advice Centres

B\ B B AR O

Principal Research &
Trade Practices Officer
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL (the "Council")
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Council (the "Council") set out on pages
3 to 16, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, and the income and expenditure
account, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council members' responsibilities for the financial statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements that arc free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the council members, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL (the "Council") - continued
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Council's
affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of its deficit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ttk (ol Gl

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
31 July 2007
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1,661,147

Appendix 5
CONSUMER COUNCIL
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007
NOTES 2007 2006
HKS$ HKS$

INCOME 5 66,890,605 66,109,039
LESS:
EXPENDITURE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 332,000 322,101
Auditor's remuneration 125,000 125,000
Consumer education 421,884 345,628
Consumer international membership fees 220,000 220,000
Council member expenses 48,400 51,600
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 2,423,772 1,197,972
Exchange loss - 5,218
Interest expense on bank borrowing not wholly

repayable within five years 161.599 -
International conferences and duty visits 219,374 165,353
Other administrative expenses 1,692,395 1,746,331
Office accommodation related expenses 1,806,095 1,757,590
Office rental expenses 56,280 321,600
Office equipment and maintenance 892,043 589,720
Production and marketing cost of "Choice" 1,685,577 1,583,878
Publicity and public relations 313,617 302,721
Staff costs 6 52,148,043 51,046,735
Testing and research 3,768,614 4,478,074
Non-Recurrent Projects

Consumer Education Campaign Project - 115,078

Review of Web based services 60,900 -

Other projects 793,546 73,293
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 67,169,139 64,447,892
(DEFICIT) SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR (278,534)
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CONSUMER COUNCIL
BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MARCH 2007
NOTES 2007 2006
HKS HK$S
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 20,126,216 15,116,449
Prepaid lease payments 8 43,141,176 32,102,698
Deposit paid for property, plant and equipment - 1,220,000
63,267,392 48,439,147
CURRENT ASSETS
Sundry debtors, deposits and prepayments 1,194,424 456,442
Loans and advances to staff 264,245 312,494
Prepaid lease payments 8 335,284 322,101
Bank balances and cash 8,716,683 20,762,208
10,510,636 21,853,245
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subscriptions received in advance 808,322 755,113
Accounts payable and accrued charges 2,557,319 3,463,021
Provision for untaken leave 3,442,403 3,385,977
Deferred income 9 2,631,718 1,851,080
Secured bank borrowing 10 184,175 -
Government grant received for acquisition
of leaschold property - 9,800,000
9,623,937 19,255,191
NET CURRENT ASSETS 886,699 2,598,054
64,154,091 51,037,201
REPRESENTING:
Leasehold property control account 11 61,186,163 46,195,815
Equipment control account 12 2,416,513 1,345,433
Designated fund for approved projects 13 3,956,513 5,102,477
Accumulated deficit (16,800,522) (1,606,524)
50,758,667 51,037,201
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income 9 9,206,000 ' -
Secured bank borrowing 10 4,189,424 .
13,395,424 -
64,154,091 51,037,201
The financial statements on pages 3 to 16 were approved and authorised for issue by the members of the
Consumer Council on 31 July 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:
M//f (N et
CHIEEEXECUTIVE
-4
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CONSUMER COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007
Designated
Leasehold Equipment fund for
property control approved Accumulated
control account  account projects deficit Total
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

At 1 April 2005 47,557,141 - 5,296,785 (3,477,872) 49,376,054
Surplus for the year - - - 1,661,147 1,661,147
Transfer from designed fund - - (194,308) 194,308 -
Transfer to equipment control

account - 1,345,433 - (1,345,433) -
Transfer from leasehold property

control account (1,361,326) - - 1,361,326 -
At 31 March 2006 46,195,815 1,345,433 5,102,477 (1,606,524) 51,037,201
Deficit for the year - - - (278,534) (278,534)
Transfer from designed fund - - (1,145,964) 1,145,964 -
Transfer to equipment control

account - 1,071,080 - (1,071,080) -
Transfer to leasehold property

control account 14,990,348 - - (14,990,348) -
At 31 March 2007 61,186,163 2,416,513 3,956,513  (16,800,522) 50,758,667
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Deficit) surplus for the year

Adjustment for:
Government grant for addition of leasehold property
Interest expense for mortgage loan
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase in sundry debtors, deposits and prepayments
Decrease (increase) in loans and advances to staff

Increase in subscriptions received in advance

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued charges
Increase in provision for untaken leave

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Interest paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Additions to prepaid lease payments

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government grant received for purchase of leasehold property
New secured bank loan raised

Repayment of secured bank loan

Government subventions received for Non-Recurrent Projects
Government subventions utilised for Non-Recurrent Projects
Funds received for other Non-Recurrent Projects

Funds utilised for other Non-Recurrent Projects

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash

2007 2006
HKS$ HKS$
(278,534) 1,661,147
(297,000) -
161,599 -
2,423,772 1,197,972
332,000 322,101
(669,343) (502,967)
1,672,494 2,678,253
(777,049) (27,578)
48,249 (141,567)
53,209 54,595
(905,702) 954,920
56,426 88,034
147,627 3,606,657
(161,599) -
(13,972) 3,606,657
708,410 461,627

(11,383,661)
(6,213,539)

(1,220,000)

(1,504,179)

(16,388,790) (2,262,552)
. 9,800,000
4,500,000 -
(126,401) =
453,800 -
(69,651) (115,078)
422,972 115,000
(323,483) (73,293)
4,857,237 9,726,629
(12,045,525) 11,070,734
20,762,208 9,691,474
8,716,683 20,762,208
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

1. ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES

The Consumer Council is a body corporate with perpetual succession established under the
Consumer Council Ordinance 1977 (Chapter 216, Laws of Hong Kong) for the purpose of
protecting and promoting the interests of consumers of goods, immovable property and services. It
is funded mainly by Government subventions.

The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the Council is 22nd Floor,
K. Wah Centre, 19 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of the Council.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Council has applied, for the first time, a number of new standard,
amendments and interpretations ("new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"), which are either effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 December 2005, 1 January 2006 or 1 March 2006. The adoption of the new
HKFRSs has had no material effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting periods
have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required

The Council has not early applied the following new standards, amendment or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The members of the Council anticipate that the
application of these standards, amendment or interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Council.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs’

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2°

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. The principal accounting
policies adopted are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sale related taxes.

Non-recurrent non-government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate on a systematic basis.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Sales of "Choice" and other publication are recognised when goods are delivered.
Sales of "Choice" on-line subscription are recognised when services are provided.

Licence fee income for "Choice" on-line is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term.

Government grants

Recurrent Projects

Recurrent Government subventions are recognised when funds are appropriated by the
Government.

Non-Recurrent Projects

Non-Recurrent Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate on a systematic basis.

Leasehold property

Government grant towards the cost of acquisition of leasehold property is recognised as income
over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

-8-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the income and expenditure account
in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Council's balance sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Receivables

Receivables including sundry debtors and loans and advances to staff are initially measured at fair
value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in income and expenditure
account when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Payables

Payables which include subscriptions received in advance, accounts payable and secured bank
borrowing which are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Council reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Council estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Impairment - continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in income and expenditure account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in income and expenditure account.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income and expenditure account on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivables as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Council, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Council operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of

monetary items, are recognised in income and expenditure account in the period in which they
arise.

Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the income and
expenditure account in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

-10 -
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council's major financial instruments include sundry debtors, loans and advances to
staff, cash and deposits at banks, subscriptions received in advance, accounts payable and
secured bank borrowing. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The members of the Council manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
mannecr.

Credit risk

The Council's principal financial assets are sundry debtors, loans and advances to staff and
cash and deposits at banks.

The Council's credit risk is primarily attributable to its sundry debtors, and loans and
advances to staff, and bank balances and cash. The amounts presented in the balance sheet
are net of accumulated impairment, if any, estimated by the members of the Council based
on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment. The
Council has no significant concentration of credit risk on sundry debtors, and loans and
advances to staff as the members of the Council considers the amounts involved are
insignificant.

The credit risk on deposits at banks is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

The Council is dependent on the government subventions receivable from the
Government. The Council considers that it is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the
Council prepares and submit budgets to the Government annually for government
subvention and it also closely monitors its cash flow position.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and demanded deposits held by the Council with an
original maturity of three months or less.

Foreign exchange risk

The Council's functional and presentation currency is in Hong Kong dollars since the
operations are mainly in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the members of the Council
consider the foreign exchange risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Council's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Council's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank borrowing at variable rates. The Council has a policy to place
surplus funds with creditable financial institutions which offer the best return for the
Council on a short-term basis and the Council continuously monitors the cash flow interest
rate risk.

- 11 -
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
b. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market transactions.
The members of the Council considers that the carrying values of financial assets and

financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to
their corresponding fair values.

5. INCOME

2007 2006
HKS$ HKS$
Government subventions - recurrent 61,405,000 61,719,000
Interest on bank deposits 669,343 502,967
Licence fees 1,000,000 1,000,000
Sales of "Choice" and other publication 2,119,454 2,047,272
Sundry income 327,049 340,078
Income from Non-Recurrent Projects
Government subventions
- Grant for addition of leasehold property 297,000 -
- Consumer Education Campaign Project - 115,078
- Promotion on new legislation 8,751 -
- Review of Web based services 60,900 -
Other Non-Recurrent Projects 1,003,108 384,644
60,890,605 66,109,039

6. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs include an amount of HK$4,889,316 (2006: HK$5,056,429) in respect of contributions
to retirement benefits scheme.

-12 -
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture
Leasehold Office Computer and
Buildings improvement equipment equipment fixtures Total
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HK$
COST
At 1 April 2005 11,824,256 2,985,985 1 - - 14,810,242
Additions E - 546,396 790,948 166,835 1,504,179
At 31 March 2006 11,824,256 2,985,985 546,397 790,948 166,835 16,314,421
Addition 2,630,518 2,848,666 560,436 1,111,318 282,601 7,433,539
At 31 March 2007 14,454,774 5,834,651 1,106,833 1,902,266 449 436 23,747,960
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2005 - - - - - -
Provision for the year 442028 597,197 54,164 91,248 13,335 1,197,972
At 31 March 2006 442028 597,197 54,164 91,248 13,335 1,197,972
Provision for the year 516,012 1,024,485 74,074 430,241 378,960 2,423,772
At 31 March 2007 958,040 1,621,682 128238 521,489 392,295 3,621,744
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2007 13,496,734 4,212,969 978,595 1,380,777 57,141 20,126,216
At 31 March 2006 11,382,228 2,388,788 492233 699,700 153,500 15,116,449

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings and premises 3.75%
Leasehold improvement 20%
Office equipment 33.33%
Computer equipment 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 33.33%

(2005: HKS Nil) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Council.

8. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

and are analysed for reporting purposes as:

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives using the

The Council has pledged the buildings having a net book value of approximately HK$4,977,913

The prepaid lease payments represents leasehold land in Hong Kong held under long-term lease

2007

HKS$
Non-current asset 43,141,176
Current asset 335,284
43,476,460

32,424,799

2006
HK$

32,102,698
322,101

(2005: HK$ Nil) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Council.

The Council has pledged the buildings having a net book value of approximately HK$11,373,761

-13-
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9. DEFERRED INCOME

2007 2006
HKS$ HKS
Unexpended deferred income (note 1)
Consumer Council Resource Centre 149,962 149,962
New Legislation Publicity Campaign 317,916 326,667
Parallel Importation Education Program 21,080 21,080
Review of Web based services 629,080 236,180
Other projects 1,216,680 1,117,191
2,334,718 1,851,080
Deferred income in respect of grant received for
acquisition of leasehold property (note 2) 9,503,000 -
11,837,718 1,851,080
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current 2,631,718 -
Non-current 9,206,000 -
11,837,718 1,851,080
Notes:
1) This represents the unexpended portion of Government grants for Non-Recurrent Projects

and funds for other Non-Recurrent Projects.

2) In 2006, the Council received a government grant of HK$9,800,000 towards the cost of
acquisition of a leasehold property which was acquired during the year ended 2007. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and is transferred to income over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. This policy has resulted in a credit to the income and
expenditure account of HK$297,000 during the year.

10.  SECURED BANK BORROWING

2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
Carrying amount repayable:
On demand or within one year 184,175 -
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 182,206 -
More than two years but not more than five years 603,274 -
More than five years ) 3,403,944 -
4,373,599 -
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
current liabilities (184,175) -

4,189,424 -

During the year, the Council obtained a mortgage loan of HK$4,500,000. The loan bears interest
at lower of prime rate or 0.75% over the HIBOR and will be repayable by monthly instalments.
The proceeds were used to finance the acquisition of a leasehold property.

The bank borrowing as at the balance sheet date was secured by the pledge of assets as set out in
notes 7 and 8.

-14-
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11.  LEASEHOLD PROPERTY CONTROL ACCOUNT
This represents the expenditure related to the acquisition of the Council's leasehold property and
includes the purchase consideration, legal fees and disbursements, interest paid on the down

payment, fitting-out and removal costs, less accumulated depreciation of buildings and leasehold
improvement and accumulated amortisation of prepaid lease payments.

12. EQUIPMENT CONTROL ACCOUNT
This represents the expenditure related to the acquisition of the Council's office equipment,
computer equipment and furniture and fixtures, less accumulated depreciation.

13.  DESIGNATED FUND FOR APPROVED PROJECTS

The amount represents the funding available to the Council for various activities
approved/contracted by the Council but not yet incurred by the balance sheet date.

At the balance sheet date, the amounts represents:

2007 2006

HKS HK$
Online Choice Operation Reserve 3,250,000 2,250,000
Office equipment and maintenance 320,913 1,050,187
Testing and research projects 385,600 1,802,290

3,956,513 5,102,477

14. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Council had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2007 2006
HKS HKS
Within one year o 265,321

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Council for certain of its offices and
Advice Centre premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years at fixed monthly
rentals.

-15-




- S EB S
Appendix 5 JiizEa 2006-07 HBEZEEER

CONSUMER COUNCIL

15.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property
contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements - 10,980,000

There is no capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property authorised but not
contracted for.

-16 -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY

SALES

DIRECT COST
Printing, artwork and promotion cost
Postage

NET INCOME

NET INCOME FROM SALES OF "CHOICE" AND OTHER PUBLICATION

2007
HKS

2,119,454

1,310,962
374,616

1,685,578

433,876

2006
HK$

2,047,272

1,209,580
374,298

1,583,878
463,394
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RREE)
BT B (B TS Z BUTF K - 9,800,000
HrGSE TERIMTH X 4,500,000
(IR EORERT TEGX (126,401)
AR H M TE H S BRI 453,800 =
FEREHE M E S (69,651) (115,078)
HAIERSE M EE & 422.972 115,000
HAIEASH PRI E S (323.483) (73.293)
2K E MRS R BB 4,857,237 9,726.629
HERHSEEY (BD) WimPE (12,045,525) 11,070,734
REFIC RERFESSEY) 20.762.208 9.691.474
REERZ BB BREG GEY) » (CEE i85 ile 8,716,683 20,762,208
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HEMAE
HEREZAY
BE_FEFELE=H=1—HILFE
GERE) A EEATSHE A
BT TR
HELHA 2.119.454 2.047.272
A
FIRR ~ HERROR HER 2 1,310,962 1,209.580
g 374.616 374.298
1.685.578 1,583,878

A 433,876 463.394
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Consultation Papers Responded to
by the Council (2006 - 2007)

0] fE R &R S A4

Economic Development and Labour Bureau - Future Development of Hong Kong Electricity Market Stage Il Consultation

RBEBRRNE TR - BEENTISARRIBRE _BEFEHASA (11 Apr 2006)

Bills Committee on Copyright (Amendment) Bill 2006 - Copyright (Amendment) Bill 2006
20064 JRE(EETEBIE REE S - 2006 MREEEETERR (8 May 2006)

Legislative Council Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene - the Administration’s Proposals to Separate the Sale of
Fresh and Chilled/Frozen Meat
TEERVZ2NREHLEEBEES - 3l ' BUNERBENOREEMEMIKE / SRAENER ) IRXNERE (5 Jun 20006)

Department of Justice - Amendment of 5.13, the Conveyancing and Property Ordinance

BIE - WFEEZH R EEFET=EMIEST (19 Jun 2006)

Legislative Council Panel on Economic Services - Arrangements to Cater for New Supply Sources for the Future Electricity
Market in Hong Kong
MESRBEBEES - AE 'ENMSEARKRER | RTINS DHERATELNER , EXMERZE (26 Jun 2006)

Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs - Impact of Branch Closure of Banks on the Public
ESUREBEES - B T RITARAMTHARZEE ) EXMERE (27 Jun 2006)

Commerce, Industry and Technology Bureau Communications and Technology Branch - Consultation on the Establishment
of a Communications Authority

TEAREEBAARER - iz TEMEBEERR 1 fIREA3XH (5 Jul 2006)

Hospital Authority - Review of Mechanism of the Drug Formulary

BEREIER - iy migsl (18 Jul 2006)

Land Registry - Land Titles (Amendment) Bill
TR - DHZERERBI(IEET)ESR (16 Aug 2006)

Chief Justice's Working Party on Solicitors 'Rights of Audience - Solicitors' Rights of Audience
RELEGEREZEE MEMBERSRIFE/NE - ZAHERS# (18 Aug 2006)

Legislative Council Panel on Health Services - Review of the Hospital Authority Drug Formulary

TESRAEEEERES - 3 T BREERENRMRE . 2EXMERE (15 Sep 2006)

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority - Proposals to Improve the Content of Annual Benefit Statement

BEMATESEIEER - AFREDRRERANBTNREZAFAAM (19 Sep 2006)
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Legislative Council Panel on Economic Services - Environmental Regulation in the Future Electricity Market

MEEREEBERES - AR "TSHAMERKER - RERE ) EXMERE (21 Sep 2006)

Legislative Council Subcommittee on Food Business (Amendment) Regulation 2006 - Legislative Proposal on Separation of
the Sale of Fresh and Chilled/Frozen Meat
IEE (2006FRME (Ba]) RB) NEEEE - sl RESHEAKENLERBNIDEZZZER (22 Sep 2006)

Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Creation of a Class Licence for Resellers of Telecommunications Services

ENEER - gt (FENRBFBHEMRAFRNERRERE) BB R (26 Sep 2006)

Department of Justice - Wasted Costs in Criminal Cases

BRE - FIERHNIEFELRE (3 Oct 2006)

Legislative Council Bills Committee - Unsolicited Electronic Messages Bill
MEEEREEE - 3 GRS TAERMER) RMERE (10 Oct 2006)

Environmental Protection Department - A Draft Comprehensive Plan to Tackle Road Traffic Noise in Hong Kong

REGREE - 3 (REEBERBRENZMmAE (BR) ) fIZZEE (16 Nov 2006)

Legislative Council Subcommittee on Air Pollution Control (Volatile Organic Compounds) Regulation - Air Pollution Control

(Volatile Organic Compounds) Regulation
IES (ERSREFERMERCEMRL) NEEES - W (ZRSREREEREERISMBRL) NERE 4 Jan
2007)

Legislative Council Panel on Health Services - The Mode of Supply of Self-Financed Item Drugs in Public Hospitals

MEEHAEEHEERES -5l T AEEREBBEEYNHERN ) EXNERE (19 Jan 2007)

Economic Development and Labour Bureau - Government Discussion Document: Promoting Competition - Maintaining our
Economic Drive

RERERES TR - IEEBRFIBORRRERAARTH®IM (6 Feb 2007)

Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Review of the Regulatory Framework for Universal Service Arrangements

BRERS - B2 ERBRIGEERBIENXA (23 Feb 2007)

The Centre for Food Safety - the Proposed Amendments to Preservatives in Food Regulations

BYE2H0 - SHER] A RYMABEBELY BEREZE (12 Mar 2007)

Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs - Impact of Branch Closure and Fee Increases of Banks on the Public
MEEMKEBERES - "RITEFAITIEMKRERARZEE 1 (29 Mar 2007)
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Consumer Advice Centres

HEBBHFD

Hotline Centre JHE&E & iR #8: 2929 2222

Fax BESEHE : 2590 6271  Website #8%h : http://www.consumer.org.hk E-mail EE#IL : cc@consumer.org.hk
Hong Kong &FE[E New Territories ¥7 53 [&
a. North Point Advice Centre a.  Shatin Consumer Advice Centre

Room 1410, 14/F, Kodak House |l Room 442, 4/F, Shatin Government Offices

39 Healthy Street East 1 Sheung Wo Che Road

North Point Shatin

dbAEARL b HEEAF O

b fERRAIFATERE _HM14181410F WHERERISDPABNEEMB442E

b. Central & Western Consumer Advice Centre
G/F, Harbour Building

b. Tsuen Wan Consumer Advice Centre

Room 105, 1/F, Princess Alexandra Community

38 Pier Road Centre
Central‘ N 60 Tai Ho Road
R
Tsuen Wan
I_ ny EE‘ u)bi ; N i <+ v AN
EF' X7 }E E% ,jE?JSFfE i/%ﬁﬁj(@ HJ—F é/%ﬁéﬂq:'/b\

EE S B0 T B @RI O 1105
Kowloon JLEE &

a. Shamshuipo Consumer Advice Centre )
c. Yuen Long Consumer Advice Centre

G/F, Yuen Long District Office Building
269 Castle Peak Road

G/F, Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices
303 Cheung Sha Wan Road

IR B
ROEEIRRVEBTSEMT

Yuen Long
TUEARER AL
TR B 269 TR E B A E T

b. Tsimshatsui Consumer Advice Centre
G/F, Consumer Council Resource Centre
3 Ashley Road
Tsimshatsui
SO IRFET O
SOLEE T EE 3SR
HBEREGERFOMT

c.  Wong Tai Sin Consumer Advice Centre
Unit 201, 2/F, Lung Cheung Office Block
138 Lung Cheung Road
Wong Tai Sin
BwARALFEATD
TAIBEAE 1385 BEAMMARIE21B201E
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Product Testing Reports

Emal B S

1. ELECTRICAL PRODUCTS ERE &

# Air Conditioners A&

& Computer Power Supply BB ERELIESS
& Dehumidifiers @M

# Flectric Room Heaters BIEIE

# Electric Blankets BB248%

# Energy Saving Lamps {2 EEE

# Induction Hotplate EHAE

2. ELECTRONIC & AUDIO-VISUAL

EQUIPMENT EF¥ R & E 8 #

® Binoculars Ei&48

# Cordless Phones&iEZ= NEAR B E

# Digital Cameras (4 updates, total 89 models)
HRSMEM (HRR4R > 2L89EALSR)

# Digital Camcorders SiiEE %

& Headphones Bff

# Internet Security Software #g_- R #t

¢ Mobile Phone Handsets (3 updates, total 70 models)
MENBFEFH (HAR3X - HTOEBLSE)

* Multimedia Projectors 28235

* Photo Printers 8 A $J EN#%

# Portable Audio/Video Players (2 updates, total 45 models)
MP3/PMP# (HiR2/K » EASEEISE )

# Printers (3 updates, total 50 models)
FTENH# (HhR3K » H50EESE )

# Rechargeable Batteries 75 &)

@ SLR Camera Lenses B £4%

& Smartphones ZINAEEE

3. FOOD & HEALTH FOOD PRODUCTS
EYRERE®

# Bottled Green Tea AR S
# Chocolates k5
* Honey Z#4&
# Slimming Health Food Products BB EEE S
¢ Yoghurt Drinks and Lactobacillus Drinks
I LI BE RS
# Fried and Baked Snacks SH/ERER/NE

2006-07T HEBEEZAEER

PERSONAL PRODUCTS 1B A A f
® Lipsticks B8
¢ Magic Necklace 1H&TSa8E

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS % £ A i

# Retractable Dog Leashes {##a10#E%
# Plastic Food Wraps {RE&F4K

OTHERS Hft:

& Car Crash Safety Test /R ERE BRI
& Cigarettes /&

# Footballs 3Kk

& Golf Balls & REk
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Product Study Reports

== ]
==Y u[ul

| —

RS

FOOD & NUTRITION & i B & &

# Fruits and VegetablesHi e

& Cleansers for Fruits and Vegetables Zh R & 525

@ Lunchboxes for Primary School Students /N2 EER S
# Bread and Biscuits &8 & 857

HEALTH & BEAUTY R 2 £ &

& Cosmetics ZREE R

# Medicines for Middle-Aged Men H4E 5B +Z£4)

# Slimming Belts and Horse Riding Exercise Machines
B RE A B S 14

& Medicines for Acnes BSIEZEY)

& Contact Lens Care [BfZIRIFEE

¢ Undesirable Medical Advertisements Ordinance
NREZEE SR

# Burn Injuries Among Children RERGEIN

# Medicines for Coronary Heart Diseases &/ MK ZE4)

# Hot Pot Cuisine 3218

# Dust Mites EB##

& Body Piercing I

# Drug Compounding EC&ZE%)

# Degenerative Joint Disease R1LEI&I

# Oral Care Products OE#EIEE R

COMPUTER, ELECTRICAL & ELECTRONIC
PRODUCTS ZEffi - ER KR EFE M
* GPS RIEEER TS

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS XK B S

# Household Cleaners A5 ZH

¢ Dehumidifying Agents 2 F &

* Water Treatment Devices B7K B2 25

# Hydraulic Beds JH/ER

# Door Locks and Home Security PIg8 M RERGAE

* Mould Prevention for Clothes and Shoes X¥J#BH S

Appendix 9 [iEz¥H

PERSONAL PRODUCTS f& A A &

# Suntan Oil BB

& Mosquito Repellents B4t A &

# Hair Growth Products 42 E

& Warm Pads BBEEEES

¢ Windproof, Waterproof and Breathable Jackets
BrRFLKER RS

REGULAR COLUMNS = 4
ANSWERING CONSUMERS' QUERIES
HEEEH FHEOE

# Plastic Bottles of Drinks 28Rk f B8

# Health Concern of SLS-/SLES- Containing

Personal Care Products

B SLSKSLESE AEE A mAvRERR
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Surveys and Service Study Reports

2B KRR I S S

| —

Opinion Surveys / Price Surveys JHEEZBERELE / BIgLEE
# 3G Mobile Phone Services 3GRRFE=TEI

& Private Elderly Homes FA&Z2 &R

# Supermarket Price Survey BHERKRAE

# Financial Advisor Services 28 EERIARTS

@ Bank Charges $R1TARISULE

# Travel Insurance  HiRE{REE

# Textbook Price Survey #HREZERFE

# Credit Card Charges SREUWE

# Textbook Expenditure Survey BEZERE

# Opinion Survey on Reliability of Electrical Appliances HBistARERRASE
# Textbook Revision #HRIE R

® Tax Loans FiE5HE

# Online Banking #8_E4R1T

%::I
It
-I)_:lg
If
R
R
S
H
3%

Other Surveys / In-depth Studies H{th
# Breast Augmentation Material PAAG FERIRIPAAG
& Study Tours ##Z2E

® Pay TV Services UWE SR

* Massage IRJEE

o Ear Candling B8

# Colon Hydrotherapies %tB%

& Banning of Slimming TV Ads in China AMESEMEEE S
# Air Tickets %2

# Wedding Planning Services &4 RS

# Music Download HF£TE,

# Octopus Cards  J\3Z8

& Adult English Courses Bk AZERERIZ

2006-07T KEBEEEZEEER
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Consumer Rights Reporting Awards 2007
Award Winners

HERDMEWmER2007T1SREZE

Category: News

Bl - % E

Gold Award % #&
KRR S E

BN - BXE — 2B H®
Silver Award #R 4%
SXREMFAT
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Winners of the
Consumer Culture Study Award VIII (2006-2007)

N\ BB L E R EIBSIE L B

Junior Division /] #§ #H

Award 3§18

Winner a8

Second TREE

Third =8

Distinguished Award
HEHFmiE

The Best Topic Award
= dES=ohrd

Merit for the Best Topic Award

BEEER

The Best Presentation Award

RAEFRE TR

Topic ZREH
(CEEZ)

CORMEISEEF)

(BCH #mac)

CENSRAT)

(BN

(HEE )

(BTEEE—5®)

CORMEISEES)

(BEE)
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(EEE)

Merit for the Best Presentation Award | {NE&sEE Y

BEFIEHAE

Senior Division S # #H
Award 4215

Winner @&

Second TiE

Third =58

Distinguished Award
B EmER

(BCH #BC)

Topic EREH

"Neither coffee nor tea"

are your cup of tea

(Mo, REEED

(MREEKD

BHEAFTEREREN)

School 215

Tin Ka Ping Secondary School
AZ R E

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HEMen TAgmElahs

St. Mary's Canossian College
e Y

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HHENER T ASERMCSHhS

Holy Trinity College

Hmg FRRER

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HHENEm TagEmeahs

Hoi Ping Chamber of Commerce Secondary School
AR TEERE

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HEMen TAgaEffcahs

Tin Ka Ping Secondary School

AP

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HHENER TASERMC SRS

Tin Ka Ping Secondary School

SRR E

Heung To Secondary School (Tseung Kwan O)
BERE B

St. Mary's Canossian College
R ERR

School 25

Wa Ying College

R

Kiangsu-Chekiang College (Kwai Chung)
SBERIMTAE

Chinese YMCA College

FEEER

Maryknoll Secondary School
BRHPE
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Merits B £4%

The Best Topic Award
BAEEER

Merits for the Best Topic Award
EREESE

Merits for the Best Presentation Award

BEFEHAE

Special Commend 45 Bl #E /™
Award #215

Presentation Design

SRENHFRIET A

Special Mentions 43 Bl & 5
Award #2175

Special Mentions

RVl

(FF% TR

(FMER)

"Neither coffee nor tea"
are your cup of tea

(R R)

CHHBEAFTEREEE)

COTE TR B

Topic £ R #EH
(RBETED

Topic Z & H
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Homantin Government Secondary School
AIXAEILFRE

Homantin Government Secondary School
AIXAEMRE

Wa Ying College

HELLRER

Diocesan Boys' School

KEBER

Maryknoll Secondary School
BAERE

Kiangsu-Chekiang College (Kwai Chung)
SEBNE

School 215

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HEMen TAgERMahE

School 215

Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Yuen Long)
RiBMPEGTH)

Ma On Shan St. Joseph's Secondary School
B BEEHE

Po Leung Kuk Ngan Po Ling College
RRBEABRER

Raimondi College

BEHER

True Light Girls' College

B ER

TWGHSs S.C. Gaw Memorial College
RE=[RRF)ILRHE

TWGHs Li Ka Shing College
RE=[FEHPE

Cognitio College (Hong Kong)
XEBEG(ER)

Cognitio College (Hong Kong)
XEEL(ER)

HKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
HHENER T ASERMC SRS
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School 215

Caritas Tuen Mun Marden Foundation Secondary School
PAZEFMEERESHE

Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Yuen Long)

RIS PEGTH)

True Light Girls' College

B ER

Shun Tak Fraternal Association Yung Yau College

IEFSE RS a2

Notre Dame College

E&RER

Hong Kong Chinese Women's Club College
EAPRFELEHE

Helen Liang Memorial Secondary School (Shatin)
R RHECHH)

STFA Cheng Yu Tung Secondary School
[[Eveir R =g e A

Hoi Ping Chamber of Commerce Secondary School
IREFT SR

Hong Kong Chinese Women's Club College
BERERELGHE

Carmel Secondary School

A ER

Maryknoll Secondary School

BAFaRE

Caritas St.Paul Secondary School

IR ERREP2

Holy Trinity College

BEME FERNER

HHCKLA Buddhist Leung Chik Wai College
BRIERECHHREEDE

SKH Lam Kau Mow Secondary School
ENEMKETE

Chang Pui Chung Memorial School
FOMIARC R
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Appendix 13 Bz e

A List of External Committees Attended b

Council Members and Staff
AEZERHBEZ2HENINAEZES

Advisory Committee on Travel Agents iRITHCIERS

Appeal Board Panel (Electricity Ordinance Cap 406) -

CLP Power Customer Consultative Group FZEEEHEF 48/

Competition Policy Advisory Group #RBUREAZE

-
B

Competition Policy Review Committee 33 B EERIGT

NEEE
Conditional Fees Sub - Committee of the Law Reform Commission J&fERE

Department of Justice - Costs Committee £ 7] - EIFEETER

Disciplinary Tribunal Panel (Electricity) under the Electricity Ordinance (Cap. 406) ACEEEHEE S (

BHERGIENFFARE)
Education and Manpower Bureau & Examinations and Assessment Authority - Joint Working Group on Independent
Exploratory Studies, NSS Liberal Studies #BMER « ERNFIZRE - FrePRSHA BB SEEEHS TFE A

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Task Force on the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
WETRE - bt RAS S8 TFENE

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Electrical Safety Advisory Committee #ETEE - EREL2EZAE

=
BE

®

Environmental Protection Department - Working Group on Regulatory Control of Volatile Organic Compounds - Paint Subgroup
RIGREE - REERMARCEYITENG - 28/

Estate Agents Authority HIERIBEER

Estate Agents Authority - Disciplinary Committee I ERBEER - LEREES

Estate Agents Authority - Finance & Strategic Development Committee HERBEER - MIE MR

=
%8

©
= B
Estate Agents Authority - Practice & Licensing Committee #hZE{CIEES

ER - AXMEREES

Estate Agents Authority - Training Committee HENRBEERF - ££IIE

B

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department - Expert Committee on Food Safety BYIRIBEEE - BYLE2ER

-
REG
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Food and Environmental Hygiene Department, Centre for Food Safety - Working Group on Naming of Codfish/Qilfish
BYREFLE  RULE2PL0 - BR/ e ERTENE

Hong Kong Advisory Council on AIDS - Committee on Promoting Acceptance of People Living with HIV/AIDS
FHRERR - BWRLRRERERES

Hong Kong Baptist University - Society of Chinese Matria Medica of Hong Kong &2 @ A - RZZE®

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Appeals Tribunal F#HREEME - FREHIE

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Insurance Agents Registration Board B {RREME - RRERBETIEES

Hong Kong Housing Authority 8RR EES

Hong Kong Housing Authority - Commercial Properties Committee HEREREZE® - BEEFT/AE

5%
b=111g
4r
A
il
B

Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Deposit-taking Companies Advisory Committee ZESRERRF - I ERA

Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Ltd. FEIRIBESERAT

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency - Governing Council HERERZR - EF3

Independent Commission Against Corruption - Sub-Committee of Citizens Advisory Committee on Community Relations

BEAE - HEEATREAEZESHEMRFTVNMERZES

Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau - Insurance Claims Complaints Panel (RIGZRERFF - RERERFEED

Land Registry - Title Registration Education Committee TR - ¥ EAMABTEEERES

Law Reform Commission - Privity of Contract Sub-Committee SERKNEERE R - SN HBR/NEEZE S

Law Society of Hong Kong - Mediator Acreditation Committee F/ERME - (HASTELE S

3

Law Society of Hong Kong - Sub-committee on Class Actions ZFBE2ME - (ERFA/NMIEESR)

Legal Aid Services Council - Interest Group on Assignment System of Legal Aid Cases

IFEERBR - I EEEBNERINAIGEEB)E

Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Numbering Advice Committee BIERE - BARFEIGLAZTE S
Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Radio Spectrum Advice Committee BNEER - | BIELARNEE D

Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Telecommunications Standard Advisory Committee

BNEER - BNRLELAEZES
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Office of the Telecommunications Authority - Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee and its

Consumer Education Working Group

ENEER - EMRBAFPEEESAZTEGNEEEERBE LF/E

Official Receiver's Office - Services Advisory Committee I EEEE - RIFBHAEZER

Official Receiver's Office - Working Party on Consumer Debts and Bankruptcy IEBIEE - HEEBEBMEESE LE/NE
Quality Public Light Bus Services Steering Committee BBA/NEREEEBEZES

Quality Taxi Services Steering Committee BB LTRHFEEEERZES

Securities and Futures Commission - Investor Education Advisory Committee

EEMPEEBEREZES - REEHBLHNRER

Securities and Futures Commission - Public Shareholders Group 5 MIEEKREREE D - RERER/NE

Telecommunications (Competition Provisions) Appeal Board Bl FHEX) LREE S

=

Travel Industry Compensation Fund Management Board R £ EEERSEBEES <

aik

ﬂl»

Vocational Training Council - Beauty Care & Hairdressing Training Board BZEFIBR/F - RBRXEFIREZES

Vocational Training Council - Working Group on Regulation of Medical Devices (Aesthetics Related)

BRIRR - BRERCERERIRETFNE

Vocational Training Council - Working Group on Trade Testing for the Beauty Care Sector

Bellmm - RREERARITIFE N

Waste Disposal Appeal Board Panel B§¥)iRE FHEED



Annual Report of the

2006-07T HEBEEZEEER

Consumer Legal Action Fund

HEE

The Consumer Council is the Trustee of the Consumer Legal
Action Fund through a Declaration of Trust executed on 30th
November 1994.

Purpose

The Fund was established with a Government grant of $10 million.
The Fund aims to give easier consumer access to legal remedies
by providing financial support and legal assistance for the benefit
of consumers, particularly, groups with similar grievances in
cases involving significant public interest and injustice. Through
supporting justifiable cases, the Fund also aims to deter business
malpractices and enhance public awareness of their consumer

rights.

Administration

The Consumer Council, as the Trustee, is responsible, through
a Board of Administrators, for the overall administration and
investment of the Fund. The Board of Administrators is in turn
underpinned by a Management Committee. The latter, whose
members were appointed by the Economic Development and
Labour Bureau, is responsible for advising on the eligibility and
merits of applications seeking assistance from the Fund. The
membership of the Board of Administrators and Management

Committee is at Annex A.

Operation

It is a long-standing practice of the Consumer Council to help
consumers resolve their complaints vis- j-vis traders concerned.
The Council may, if it considers appropriate or if the complainants
so request, refer cases of complaints to the Fund for consideration.

Consumers may also apply to the Fund directly for assistance.

Generally, the Fund, in examining an application for assistance,
will consider whether all other means of dispute resolution have
been exhausted and assess the case against established eligibility
criteria. Such criteria include whether the case involves significant
consumer interest; whether a large group of consumers have
been or will potentially be adversely affected; whether the

case has a reasonable chance of success; whether the matter
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concerned can promote the consumer cause and has deterrent
effects on unscrupulous business practices; and whether it is

practicable for the Fund to offer timely assistance.

New Cases

During the year under review, the Management Committee held
6 meetings and resolved matters by circulation on 5 occasions,
while the Board of Administrators held 2 meetings and resolved

matters by circulation on 2 occasions.

Altogether, the Fund considered 17 groups of cases of different
categories. The number of aggrieved individual in each group

ranged from 1 to 34.

After thorough consideration, the Fund declined 13 groups of
applications relating to complaints about real property, banking
service, traveling service, telecommunication service, medical
service, beauty service, and sale of goods. On the other hand, the
Fund granted assistance to 2 cases respectively concerned with
collateral warranty allegedly given in a property sales brochure
and death benefits under insurance contracts covering life and
accident. The remaining 2 groups of applications, respectively
related to time-sharing scheme and telecommunication
service, were submitted to the Board of Administrators for its
endorsement of the Management Committee's recommendation

for granting assistance

Assisted Cases

1. Breach of Collateral Warranty in Sales Brochure
Before signing the Sale & Purchase Agreement for the purchase
of an uncompleted flat, the assisted consumers took note of the
sales brochure which stated in English that bay windows and
window sills at living/ dining room and bedrooms of each unit
would be finished with reconstituted stone slabs. When taking
possession of the flat they found that the window sills at the
living/dining rooms were not installed with reconstituted stone
slabs as stated in the sales brochure. Despite repeated requests
by the assisted consumers, the developers refused to finish the
window sills on the grounds that i) it was not specified as part of
the standard provisions in the Sale & Purchase Agreement; and
ii) there was a typo in the English version of the sales brochure
and that 'bay windows and window sills' should have been 'bay
windows and their sills' as so suggested by the Chinese version.
In that case, the assisted consumers installed the slabs on the

window sills at their expense.
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With the assistance of the Fund, the assisted consumers filed
claim with the Small Claims Tribunal against the developers on
the ground that the statement in English amounted to a warranty
given by the developers collateral to the Agreement; and that
the developers had breached the warranty by failing to install the

window sills with reconstituted stone slabs.

Finally, the assisted consumers fully recovered their expenses
for the installation and the costs incurred from the proceedings

before trial by settlement.

2. Life and Accident Insurance Contracts

The assisted consumer's wife was an insured under insurance
contracts covering life, critical illness, accident and hospitalization.
She died in a car accident. However, the insurer rescinded the
contracts on the ground that some of her health history had
not been disclosed. Her death benefits under the life insurance
contracts and two accident insurance contracts were denied.
With the Fund's assistance, counsel advice was obtained
regarding merits of the intended claims under the accident
insurance contracts. The Fund might seek further clarifications

from Counsel on certain issues.

Cases Carried Over From Previous Year
The Fund continued to work on the following cases brought

forward from the previous year.

1. Representation of the Interiors in Sales Literature

In the case concerning representation of the interior in sales
literature, the parties filed and exchanged a number of witness
statements, supplemental witness statements and supplemental
expert reports. Counsel was instructed to advise on evidence. The
assisted consumes filed statements from two expert witnesses
on the issue of trade practice. Subsequently, two further witness

statements regarding trade practice were filed by the Defendant.

Having contested the Defendant's summonses for interrogatories,
the assisted consumers were ordered to answer some of the

interrogatories. Answers were filed accordingly.

The adjourned pre-trial review was heard in February 2007. The
case was set down for trial with 6 days reserved from 4th June
2007.
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2. Delay in Completion of a Residential Development
As regards the proceedings instituted by 7 groups of assisted
consumers claiming for damages for alleged delay of completion
of a residential development, the Defendant's application for
striking out and further or alternatively for trial of preliminary
issues was heard on 6th November 2006. The application was
part heard and re-fixed to 5th March 2007 when it was dismissed
with costs to the assisted consumers. The Defendant appealed
and the hearing was fixed to 17th and 18th October 2007.
Moreover, the Defendant applied for stay of execution of the
order regarding directions as to matters preparing for the trial,
pending the final disposal of its appeal. Subsequently, the appeal
hearing was re-fixed by court order for 9th May 2007.

Since its establishment and up until the year under review, the
Fund had considered 95 and granted assistance to 31 groups of

cases. A statistical report is at Annex B.

Finance
The Fund is self-financed with income derived from:
a. investing the capital sum in fixed deposits, bonds and blue

chip stocks;

b. charging each applicant a fee of $100 for each case within the
jurisdiction of the Small Claims Tribunal and $1,000 for each

other court case;
C. recovering costs from defendants in successful cases; and

d. receiving from each successful case a contribution of 10% of

the benefits gained by the assisted consumer.

As at 31st March 2007, the Fund had a balance of about $15.5
millions. The Fund's Auditors' Report and Financial Statements for

the period under review are at Annex C.

Acknowledgements

Mrs. Pamela CHAN, member of both the Board of Administrators
and the Management Committee of the Fund, retired from the
two bodies on 31st March 2007 after serving in them for over
12 years. Ms. Connie LAU, successor of Mrs. CHAN as Council's
Chief Executive, would automatically become a member of
the Board of Administrators under the Trust Deed of the Fund
and was appointed by the Permanent Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour (Economic Development) as member

of the Management Committee with effect from 1st April 2007.
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The Fund wishes to express its heartfelt thanks to Mrs. CHAN for
her invaluable contributions and to welcome Ms. LAU to join the

two bodies as new member.

Besides, the Fund would like to express gratitude to Members of
the Board of Administrators and the Management Committee,
and to all those who have rendered assistance for all their efforts

and contributions to the Fund throughout the year.
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Annex A LiiFE &S

Membership List of the Board of Administrators of
Consumer Legal Action Fund

HEBARLEEWITREERE

Chairperson * J&
Prof. K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP BRZGAHIE - IREFEE » K4t
Vice-Chairperson Bl E &
Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, JP SRIEERRRT - T4
Members £ 5
Mrs. Pamela CHAN WONG Shui, BBS, JP BRERELZ T+ @ SIKFIEE - AF#H+
Mr. Ambrose HO, SC {Alji st &R A2 ED
Dr. John WONG Yee-him ZEIUEEE

Membership List of the Management Committee of
Consumer Legal Action Fund
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Chairperson L J&

Prof. Johannes CHAN Man-mun, SC (Hon) PR EiEUR » RBE R
Vice-Chairperson 5| E &

Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, JP SBIREEARAD » AF#+
Members £ 5

Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan BRZRBERAIZEM

Mr. Anthony CHAN Kin-keung, SC = BRAEZSRE T ALREM

Mrs. Pamela CHAN WONG Shui, BBS, JP BRETEZ & SAKHIEE » NFMHT
Mr. LEUNG Lit-on RZUR4EEHN

Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun BEERE2ET

Ms. Anita MA Wing-tseung 5§ sk3 R {2 BT
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Cases of Consumer Legal Action Fund

HEEFRASBEZEMET

The Fund was set up on 30 Nov 1994. The Fund has altogether considered 95 groups of cases. Number of persons likely affected by

the cases may be up to thousands of consumers.

EEN—ANEF+—HA=THERI - KRENERLFSHE  SAERMPEEEHRER—Z8TARS -

Groups of Cases considered since 30 Nov 1994 95
B—NMANFE+—A=1THLER  KESEENERAEE
Problem solved during application ERz5 77 Bh A SIS B E AR R 1
Under Consideration {/37£% EH 0
Assistance granted EE S EH B2 E% 31
Compensation obtained /38 10°
Liquidation ;&5 2
Judgment obtained ¥R 6"
Cases not pursued — no recovery prospect REIRIE - REEE AT AL 5
Cases not pursued —applicants' withdrawal KB IR - KB ARG 2
Referred to Legal Aid S EEIEBE 1
In process 7 5
Referred to Council for Policy Consideration 385K Ze & /E B 5 g I8 3
Referred to Council for Mediation/Monitoring 358 &= &8/ 855 5
Assistance declined R AR ER 35 55

a In one group of cases, only partial compensation was obtained. Further action showed no recovery prospect. Case was

therefore not further pursued. In another group of cases, partial compensation was obtained through settlements.

b Inone group of cases, one case of the group obtained judgment while the rest obtained compensation by settlement.
HEh—AERETE—EERZEFFIR MZENERERABBMERESIEE-
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Deloitte.
=2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND (the "Fund")
(Established in Hong Kong under the Deed of Trust dated 30 November 1994)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Legal Action Fund (the "Fund") set out on
pages 3 to 10, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, and the income and
expenditure account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Board of administrators' responsibilities for the financial statements

The board of administrators are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the board of administrators, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND (the "Fund") - continued
(Established in Hong Kong under the Deed of Trust dated 30 November 1994)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs
as at 31 March 2007 and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

([

D.J.:"[, " lovela (g~

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 July 2007
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007
2007 2006
HK$ HKS
INCOME
Bank interest income 220,322 171,394
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities 410,444 409,836
Application fee from assisted consumers 13,400 52,000
Contributions from assisted consumers 281 95,277
Amortisation of discount on a held-to-maturity debt security 13,831 13,831
Legal fees recovered 639,771 -
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading investments - 55,457
Sundry income 61
1,298,049 797,856
EXPENDITURE
Auditor's remuneration 13,000 10,000
Bank charges 1,350 1,260
Legal fees for assisted consumers 635,835 852,576
Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security 11,139 11,139
Sundry expenses 2,670 1,490
663,994 876,465
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 634,055 (78,609)
-3-
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MARCH 2007

NOTES 2007 2006
HKS HKS$
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Held-to-maturity debt securities 5 9,127,195 9,124,503
CURRENT ASSETS
Interest receivable 75,373 67,478
Bank balances 6,302,180 6,036,989
6,377,553 6,104,467
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,500 363,777
Accrued expenses 13,000 10,000
15,500 373,777
NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,362,053 5,730,690
15,489,248 14,855,193
CAPITAL AND RESERVE
Capital 1 10,000,000 10,000,000
Accumulated surplus 5,489,248 4,855,193
15,489,248 14,855,193

The financial statements on pages 3 to 10 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Administrators on 31 July 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

ADMINISTRATOR ADMﬂ&ﬁéT‘E@R
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

At 31 March 2005
Deficit for the year

At 31 March 2006
Surplus for the year

At 31 March 2007

Capital
HKS$

10,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

Accumulated

surplus
HKS

4,933,802
(78,609)

4,855,193
634,055

5,489,248

Total
HKS$

14,933,802

(78,609)

14,855,193
634,055

15,489,248
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007
2007 2006
HKS HKS$

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus (deficit) for the year 634,055 (78,609)
Adjustments for:

Bank interest income (220,322) (171,394)

Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities (410,444) (409,830)

Amortisation of discount on a held-to-maturity debt security (13,831) (13,831)

Gain on disposal of held-for-trading investment - (55,457)

Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security 11,139 11,139
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 597 (717,988)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (361,277) 355,939
Increase in accrued expenses 3,000 1,818
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (357,680) (360,231)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 622,871 572,882
Purchase of held-for-trading investments - (123,487)
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading investments - 178,944
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 622,871 628,339
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 265,191 268,108
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF THE YEAR 6,036,989 5,768,881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances 6,302,180 6,036,989
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

1 OBJECTIVES AND OPERATION OF THE FUND

The Consumer Legal Action Fund (the "Fund") was established on 30 November 1994 under a
Deed of Trust with the Consumer Council as the trustee for the purpose of offering financial
assistance to consumers in seeking legal redress, remedies and protection. The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region has granted a sum of HK$10 million as initial capital
to the Fund. The capital should be repayable to the Government upon dissolution.

The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the Fund is 22nd Floor, K.
Wah Centre, 19 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of the Fund.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Fund has applied, for the first time, a number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations ("new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are either effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 December 2005, 1 January 2006 or 1 March 2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs
has had no material effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Fund has not early applied the following new standards, amendment or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The board of administrators anticipates that the
application of these standards, amendment or interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Fund.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2°

HEK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’
HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment®
HK(IFRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions®
HK(IFRIC) - INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1J anuary 2007

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 J anuary 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 J anuary 2008
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. The principal accounting
policies adopted are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Bank interest income and interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities are recognised on
a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

Cost of financial assistance

All costs connected with the provision of financial assistance rendered to consumers are recorded
on an accrual basis and charged against income and expenditure account in the period incurred.
Any costs recoverable from assisted consumers are recorded as income upon receipt.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Fund reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual assets, the Fund estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in income and expenditure account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Fund's balance sheet when the Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Instruments - continued

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Fund has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity debt securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at
cost.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity debt securities are
measured at amortised cost, less any identified impairment loss. The annual amortisation of any
discount or premium on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with other
investment income receivable over the term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in
each period represents a constant yield on the investment. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment's recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Payables
Payables which include accounts payable and accruals are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Fund's major financial instruments include cash and deposits at banks and accounts
payable.

The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Fund manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings.
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued
Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the Fund closely monitors its cash flow
position.

Cash and deposits at bank comprise cash and demanded deposits held by the Fund with an
original maturity of two months or less.

Foreign exchange risk
The Fund's functional and presentation currency has been in Hong Kong dollars since the
operations are mainly in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the board of administrators of
considers the foreign exchange risk is not significant.
Interest rate risk
The Fund has no significant interest rate risk as it does not have any significant interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities other than cash and deposits placed with financial
institutions.

b. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.
The board of administrators considers that the carrying values of financial assets and

financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to
their corresponding fair values.

5. HELD-TO-MATURITY DEBT SECURITIES

2007 2006
HK$ HKS$ -
Held-to-maturity debt securities, listed 9,127,195 9,124,503
Market value of listed securities 8,960,630 8,713,570
-10-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Instruments - continued

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Fund has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity debt securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at
cost.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity debt securities are
measured at amortised cost, less any identified impairment loss. The annual amortisation of any
discount or premium on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with other
investment income receivable over the term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in
each period represents a constant yield on the investment. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment's recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Payables
Payables which include accounts payable and accruals are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Fund's major financial instruments include cash and deposits at banks and accounts
payable.

The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Fund manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings.
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued
Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the Fund closely monitors its cash flow
position.

Cash and deposits at bank comprise cash and demanded deposits held by the Fund with an
original maturity of two months or less.

Foreign exchange risk
The Fund's functional and presentation currency has been in Hong Kong dollars since the
operations are mainly in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the board of administrators of
considers the foreign exchange risk is not significant.
Interest rate risk
The Fund has no significant interest rate risk as it does not have any significant interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities other than cash and deposits placed with financial
institutions.

b. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.
The board of administrators considers that the carrying values of financial assets and

financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to
their corresponding fair values.

5. HELD-TO-MATURITY DEBT SECURITIES

2007 2006
HK$ HKS$ -
Held-to-maturity debt securities, listed 9,127,195 9,124,503
Market value of listed securities 8,960,630 8,713,570
-10-

135



136

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Annex C Qg

BRARNES
(HHREFORAE B EREM KAL)

s E R R
BE_FSFLE=H=1—HiL4¥E




Annex C [GETS 2006-07T EEBEEEZEEER

REHTRES

S R R
BE _FEFLFE A A HILER

HE EX
R RGBT 1&2
W kSE 3
Zi it 4
HErdgh 5
i 6
B SRR 7-10

137



138

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Annex C Qg

ELAVE:2 Gk

BoRBESAESEEA (" RES | )
(IR —NPUHE— A =+ B ST UIE R A L)

AREBEMTO SRR AR ETARES (T HES, ) BIVR2EEFI0HIMBHRE - &
BN FFEFEZR = H AT DU O L FE R BCHRER K - i )
R EFRS » DU E O R PORI B HAR R R

EEPTRAGHYBERROEE

HEWTE A EARBEE G A SRR T A H S MR S L S a9 s
# o ERBE AT ESRERRS - WARBIRA GENEETECR - GRFTEmARET
B R AR R B LB BN S B R A ARME 2 PRREE A% DU B R R T P AE R G R
HRRMPEREERMREG | B SGER SEGTBOR - RN RN GE &S HbET -

BT BT

AT RIS T B BRI E R » RS R SEEARBZRE
Rkl - TR HA AR - ATUAERARENIAS - BHEAHAA LB
FEIBERTEUE - AMT/ AR G ATl G AR TR TIERME TRAL T 0E - LS HERI 3
RATTHETHE TR - WA S TH S - IS IR E o S B iR S AR (T A S
ARG -

FERG U S B TAR LA B o Pk M AU 3 8 IR R A8 - PR IR AR Y
RIMZBETE AT - BIEFEAG EHAGE F BRI S B B R A RSB R - 7F
FERZSE MR IS B A RE M AT 2 Y B AR PRE:
% DEGHEEEZIEY  HIERY RESNHEZEWRERET R - #ET
E#ITE EGATRA G BERA GBI R F &R MR TSR M - DU FREM B dea e
23755K -

AITHIE - AITIRESREZSET R FCEE - BATTHIFE R L -




Annex C gz E 2006-07T HEBEEZEEER

(ﬁ&—%h@¢+‘ﬁ +Bf£§%ﬁ§%ﬂmﬁi)

R

AT EEMHRRCARBR TSR G ST AT BREN -HEELFE
=A== —HEOMBORDLE RS H LR Rk R R S -

TS BRSO R AT
PGS Tam

ik
—OO0t¥EA=+—H

139



140

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

ATy

Annex C
BRERALS
67 <1 -E.3
BE_SSLHFE=-A=1—HIL¥E
TEERE e
WA
R TR A 220,322 171,394
FEFHAH 2 FEB R M 410,444 409.836
ZoneEE RS 13,400 52,000
ZHERE SRR 281 95,277
FEEF B 2 B e s e 13,831 13.831
Wlel i FEANEE 639,771 .
HE R EE 2 & EF - 55,457
FETRMA 61
1.298.049 797.856
%
AL G 13,000 10,000
HiTEH 1.350 1,260
FHhEEE TR 635.835 852,576
FER R H 2 (55575 2 el 11,139 11,139
Hera S 2,670 1,490
663.994 876.465
ASERE (R Btk 634,055 (78.609)




Annex C [ZEGE 2006-07 HEEZEEFH
BEHEFAES
wERME
BREBEEFE=H=1—H
it Z|BEE W ZRBFEAE
Pt R
FEWRBIHE
FFERHAE 2 (8058557 5 9.127.195 9,124,503
BRI
FEHCF . 75,373 67.478
HYTREER 6.302.180 6.036.989
6.377.553 6.104.467
b i =i
FEEAT WRIEL 2,500 363,777
[+ EH 13.000 10.000
15.500 373.777
FERTREEIFHE 6,362,053 5.730.690
15,489,248 14,855,193
e SURE
e 1 10,000,000 10,000,000
=y ] 5,489,248 4,855,193
15,489,248 14,855,193

WA HES 0V H M REACHESBTEREN — OO LHFtA = +—HitHER I #E

Feffi o WHHLIFAREE -

REPITREORA EEPTERGEA

141



CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07
Annex C RifEzE

BREHRAES

AR

BE_BSEtFE-H=1—HIit&EE

NowmERE=H=+—H 10,000,000 4933802 14,933,802

TFERERL - (78.609) (78.609)

RomEAE=A=+—H 10,000,000 4,855,193 14,855,193

FRERER - 634,055 634.055

NoEHEEFE=H=1+—H 10,000,000 5,489,248 15,489,248
5

142



Annex C RS 2006-07T KEBEEEZEEER

BEETRAES
BeWER
BE _BBCHF=-H=1T—HIHEE
—BELE —BERE
HEH B
fid-2 303
AEF () Zik 634,055 (78,609)
STFWEH R
HRITHIEHA (220,322) (171,394)
FRBI A 2 EBERZ FIEMA (410,444) (409,836)
R R BB & fissaEss < ey (13,831) (13,831)
R FEE I E BT - (55,457)
FFE R H 2 ESE5 R R 11,139 11,139
A EE SRR SRS E 597 (717.988)
FERTIRE (34) #in (361,277) 355,939
FEGHE RN 3.000 1.818
RIS B R0 B8 198 (357.680) (360.231)
BHREY
EHFIE 622,871 572,882
fSERHERE A - (123,487)
HEFHEEE < % & 2 TS0 . 178.944
KEMETEIRETR 622.871 628.339
Bl& RS SRR 265,191 268,108
AR B RS SHEHY) 6.036.989 5.768.881
RERZBSEBSEHY) - REFTREER 6,302,180 6,036,989
6

143



144

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Annex C Qg

S S HR M

BE_BBLF-A=1—HIFE

1. HE2 HrRSEME
HEERDES (TES ) R—IWeE+—H =+ HIRSREFEBIROL » iR ER
REHREETTA - BNER BN EEEIERESORIEY - MR IR - M E s
AT B BURFSEAE R — T BT E FS AR S - ILRESKTERL S0 B EIRF BB BORT -
HeEAUREMHR S0 e 3 SHE(ERbAE B E A L AT EnE 1 915 S s PR o 0220 -
PAB R 9 AR 251 [N - RN R IE R -

2. ERRERTE ] B | A s S R
AEER - ESEREMARTEEAE (TFEEEHAE ) Ak —FFHE
+A—H - ZFFAFE-HA-HROFEFAE = H - HAG &R 420 S5
HER - ERTRERIR (7 T BB HER ) SRS R B R R E A =
DA GRS TR YNGR - BERAEHRTEE -

RS M ARTER IR T ERMEAREBCCIHER - 2575208 - TRRGTHT - FE
FARZSRHER ~ ST SRR G MR BRI B RGE R B -

EgaHERIE I (&EET) BAP
g HERE23%E (FE)) EEmA
B TSRS M I S 78 SR TR - @
B TSRS ERIE 8 5% BESE

Fit (BT EHRERBEAE) RE8 BB R8s > R’

F4 (BBMERLRREEET) BB EFRFHNEGHTETE

it (EEUMHRERERES) BRI RS RRE

& (RRMBRERBRAT) BN SER BRIt — MR
)

Tk (T REREEEG ) 2/ 12 IR

' BB — A — BB Rl AR
P T BESUE—H — H B e R
P BB A —H 2 il 4345
T EEAE AN A —H RS R 4
P HoFEAF A B SR E 4
CHoFHEESH AR R ERE
T BB\ — BB Bl AR




Annex C Qiigz&s]

2006-07T EEBEEEZEEER

biEhe=riT/ 5

3.

FRETBOR

A TSR R R S A » WA E A SR A G PR & A Bl e RIS
MATER A8 E E @ T BORRIFF AT -

WA R

SRE TR R A A B R B B H o2 (578 25 F SIS IR EE P RS EEHE - R A
RS EIE S I

MBAEYEH

B2 AT R B A R FT R A P SR U A e S B S SR IR A
SELRARR » ATHESZBNIE B ER I IR AEARTERE » RO RR o ANRNESE. -

EB A EEFSE H F H A IR - DR ER TS et F W BT E
W51 - (ETEETRE S S RIS SREE ARy el A8 DAGERE IRk s HEAE
B (A1) - A AT REMS RS EE A T E] e - AR SRS AR AT
WA ST AT AT ) A - SRS R B R AP -

ATl SRR A TSR A S A B BeE - ERT R RIE - 5t
AR ( STaT SRRl & A TR DU SR H A A AR e ) R Aba AR 2K

filia FEEE o Al SRR S KA ELR R + S B o RT3 s L AT [
{H - WRAERSTRENR FICTAE T REED

A U 500+ A MR o S T2 A5 T+ HEFTIS I
ST P A A B A A BT R o2 M - TRl 2 A48T
BEHERISHOA, -

SHTH

CREENREMAMNYNESER CAEARE L ESDRBE TRGHIRNETY
JiE » TLAMERE - RiEE R B (15 e R HE -

145



146

CONSUMER COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Annex C Qg

WHERNES
3. FESHBOR - M

SR TH -

FFERII (B

FAERMIN ALARBITE SRTE - RAEERA] PRENER R EE RN H L EEH
A RRENFFEERIMA - FEIH 2 BP0 E W 0 RN g5 R A Eness -

AYIL HER AR AT - R B B 2 (058 25 DB AP r] T e E ok A
EANR- AR R B B 2 B T (EGRE F MR A s N HLA e
WONREAN - Bt feRe s B AR R AR ERR - SR F IR T HRERE
HORAET Bt T 48 A o MR T BB SR AR R i R DA R HE R & T A R R T IR B
fitr7 P74 > {EAERTRINTERD — TER(ERSE - AN7ERE IR B BRI R R R T
(] AR N R e B A B B AT - RURRAERS IR AT T LURE R & A R e
ek fiE R E] H HAA S AR HERR B 0 T A BESRRCA -

BRI EFEY)

¥ 4p KB FEY) A F IR S LUR AT RERF ST RS AT SR SR A A 30 AR ES 8
PR AEK -

T

WA SO PR SRR B » 91 B AR » SRR A TR A M A
At -

4. SMTHR
a - BAEs e e B H R EOR
e F 2O R T ARG KRR TRk DARJE iR -

B R T ELAREY UE DUR AT kAR % S BB AT BRI T 32 - B 3 T il
MEFTEFR R % » DABMECR BT R B e 1t

15 BB
EEEEERBAR - MERASYEFIRAERSEETFHRIIERIT -




Annex C Qiigz&s]

2006-07T EEBEEEZEEER

biEb 2 e=Flis/ 5

4.

ERMTH - ¥

a - AT EE AR R BOR-

T

e RE AL IR G ERG - Hit - FrRzii s O R (s -

Bl FARTTTF Ak EAS R i R R R SR SRR P W 18] F SRR @ K -
PHEEE

PR E £ SR LAAEREST - BULHIRER 2 SRR - Bt - SiTZA9
ES/MERR ST S 3H -

FIE s

G AT AT R - #EREREE RS MRt - R A EA
LRREERAM -

b - AFE

EREE R BMAROATETRBARERE - BRITRREG RS » EHE
HUERTT i A BfEksmE -

ST RO MR AT AT B I % 7 B R (MR I HL AR
HIATA -

5. FEBWIH AR

—EFEE —EENE
FFEEI H o SRS 357 9,127,195 2,124,503
PSSR e 8,960,630 8.713.570

147





